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Mr. Speaker: I call the House to order. 
We will proceed with Morning Prayers. 

r Prayers J 

Mr. Speaker: Before proceeding with the Order 
Paper this morning, as Members will recall, on 
November 2, 1976, the Yukon Legislative Assembly 
formally occupied for the very first time, these our 
permanent Chambers. At that time and on behalf of all 
Members of the House, it was my pleasant duty to dedi
cate these Chambers to all of the people of the Yukon to 
whom we are indebted to serve. 

I can now ad vise the House that a suitable plaque has 
been installed at the entrance to the Public Gallery in 
commemoration of this most historic event and to serve 
as a constant reminder to the people of Yukon of the 
continuing independence of this, their Legislative As
sembly. 

We will proceed at this time to the Order Paper. 

ROUTINE PROCEEDINGS 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker, I'd like to rise this 
morning on a point of personal privilege. Over the last 
week o.r so we've heard a lot of reports from Standing 
Committees and have seen them tabled in this House 
and I'd just like to pay a tribute to the Clerk of the 
Ass~mbly and her support staff in providing, certainly 
the mput and a lot of resourcefulness towards those 
Committees and their work. 

You know, I was really amazed at, just in working in 
one of the Standing Committees, that the respect that is 
shown to Yukon and the Clerk of this Assembly and 
certainly the Speaker's position, by other jurisdictions 
and when we're looking for information and backup, we 
seem to have no problem getting that kind of help what
soever. 

And as I said earlier, I think we should pay a tribute to 
~he Clerk of the Assembly and her support staff in help
mg us. 

(Applause) 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any Documents for Tabl-
ing? 

Reports of Committees? 
Petitions? 
Introduction of Bills? 

BILLS: INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre 
that a Bill entitled "Stabilization Fund Loan Ordi
nance" be now introduced and read a first time. 
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Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre 
that a Bill entitled " Stabilization Fund Loan Ordi
nance" be now introduced and read a first time . 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed . 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the motion as carried. 

rMotion carried ) 

Mr. Speaker: When shall the Bill be read for a sec
ond time? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Next sitting of the Assembly, Mr. 
Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Bills for Intro
duction? 

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse Porter 
Creek? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, on behalf of the Com
missioner of the Yukon Terri tory, I have the privilege of 
introducing Third Appropriation Ordinance, 1977-78, 
approved and recommended for the consideration of the 
Legislative Assembly of Yukon under the provision of 
Section 24 of the Yukon Act and Standing Order 62 of the 
said Legislative Assembly, signed Commissioner of the 
Yukon Territory, Arthur Pearson . 

Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre that a Bill enti
tled "Third Appropriation Ordinance, 1977-78 be now 
introduced and read a first time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre, that a Bill entitled "Third Appropriation Ordi
nance, 1977-78" be now introduced and read a first time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is car
ried. 

(Motion carried) 

Mr. Speaker: When shall the Bill be read a second 
time? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Next sitting of the Assembly, Mr. 
Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Bills for Intro· 



duction? 
Are there any Notices of Motion for the Production of 

Papers? 
Notices of Motion or Resolution? 

NOTICES OF MOTION 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker, I give Notice of Motion, 
moved by myself, seconded by Mr. Mcintyre, with re
spect to the nominee for Pipeline Hearings. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Notices of Mo
tion? 

The Honourable Member from Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: I give Notice of Motion, Mr. Speaker, 
seconded by the Honourable Member from Riverdale 
that the Green Paper on Highway signs be moved into 
Committee. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Notices of Mo
tion or Resolution? 

Are there any Statements by Ministers? 
This then brings us to the Question Period. Have you 

any questions? 

QUESTION PERIOD 
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse River

dale? 

Question re: Amending of Transport Public Utilities 
Ordinance 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Speaker, a question this 
morning directed to probably one of the Ministers this 
m?rning, Health and Welfare could probably answer 
this one, I am sure .I understand that the Government is 
P.lanning to introduce amended Motor Vehicle Legisla
tion at the Fall Session and I am just wondering if they 
would be planning to bring forth some amendments to 
the Transport Public Utilities Ordinance as well. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Health 
and Welfare? 

Hon. Mrs. Wbyard: Mr. Speaker, it is the intention 
of this Government to revise a number of Ordinances 
over the summer months and I understand the approp
riate department is preparing a new Motor Vehicles 
Ord.inance for the November Session. They are also 
asking for permission to rewrite the Transport Public 
Utilities Ordinance. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Ogil
vie? 

Question re: Uuemployment in Yukon 

Ms. MUlard: A written question, Mr. Speaker for 
Mr. Commissioner. ' 

(a) What is the official unemployment rate in the 
Yukon ; and 
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( bl Since eligibility for unemployment insurance is 
now related to the unemployment rate , how many 
weeks of work will be needed in the Yukon to be eligible? 

Mr. Speaker : The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse West? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker , on April 26th, the 
Honourable Member from Pelly submitted a written 
question asking, in view of the fact that the Faro Board 
of Health has completed its study on the proposed up
grading of the Faro Nursing Station and presented its 
proposal to the regional director of Northern Health 
Services and presumably the Territorial Health De
partment has received a copy of the proposal , can the 
Minister advise when will the decision be made with 
respect to the expansion of the Faro Nursing facilities? 
Can we expect the construction to start this year and 
what is the total amount of monies available, federal 
and territorial , for this project? 

The answer, Mr. Speaker, to those questions: In its 
proposal, the Faro Board of Heal th suggested that the 
facility be expanded from four to ten beds. 

Health and Welfare Canada have advised that an 
analysis is required to determine if in fact six is the 
correct number of extra beds, or if it should be more or 
less. The Regional Office, the Department of National 
Health and Welfare has, at this t ime, made limited 
progress on their report and anticipate it will take three 
to four months to complete. 

The decision is not so much one of expansion, but 
rather the amount or form of expansion required. The 
decision cannot be made until the report by the Regional 
Office is completed. At this time, the Regional Office is 
not prepared to make any commitments on the start of 
construction. 

In the 1977-78 Estimates, Establishment2501 the Ter
ritorial Government has provided $20,000.00 for design 
and engineering studies of this proposal. It is antici
pated that we will be called upon for a further $160,000.00 
in 1978-79 and that our total cost will be in the region of 
$270,000.00. 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner? 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, on April 12th, Mr. 
Berger asked the following question: In the light of the 
100 per cent commitment of Dawson City to tourism, I 
was informed in Dawson on a recent visit that the 
Economic Planning Unit is going to conduct a survey 
about the economic impact of tourism in Dawson. I was 
wondering if Mr. Commissioner could explain to us 
what this study is going to do to Dawson and why it is 
actually being done? 

The answer is that I can assure you the Economic 
Planning Unit is not involved in any way with such a 
holistic study. My understanding is that no such study 
on the impact of tourism in Dawson City is being consi
dered by any government agency, either YTG or the 
federal government. 

What has been considered, however, is a study by 
Parks Canada to determine what the socio~onomic 
impact of Parks Canada's development alone and their 
program will be on the City of Dawson. Ther~ has been 
no decision whether this particular study will proceed 
however. Parks Canada feels that the study should not 

() 

) 

) 



be done until after they have announced their master 
development plan for Dawson. Parks Canada expects to 
announce their development plan in June. 

Whether this particular study is initiated or not the 
Economic Research and Planning Unit of the Y~kon 
Territorial Government has not been asked to partici
pate and at this time, they have no plans to become 
involved in such a study. 

Mr. Speaker: The Ho nourable Member from 
Whitehorse West? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, in the Question 
Period on the 26th April, Ms. Millard asked whether a 
recommendatio1 concerning the Child Abuse Registry 
had been acted upon by the Social Welfare Branch. 

A Child Abuse Registry has been considered for the 
Yukon and information has been gathered from various 
parts of Canada. At this time it has not been felt to be a 
priority need, as the Yukon is small and most concerns 
are channeled through the Social Welfare Branch. 
. _In the provin_ce_s there are such a variety of resources, 
1t IS far more d1ff1cult to coordinate this type of informa· 
tion and service. A Registry as such, is something that 
Will be developed eventually. In the meantime a consid
erable amount of work has been done across North 
America in this area, and we will be in a position to take 
advantage of the research done Outside. 

The most important factor in this problem is effective 
coordination of the services presently provided and 
public education in the area of reporting abuse and aw
areness of the services available. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further questions? 
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse West? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, on April 26th, the 
Honourable Mer:nber for Pelly asked regarding the 
Town of Faro bemg plagued by beetles and asked if the 
Department of Health could assure the residents of 
Faro that the insecticide used for fumigating is not 
harmful. 

Mr. Speaker, this problem has had our attention since 
the Fall of 1976, but out <:f deference to the Honourable 
Member, we didn't mention it. 

Mr. Speaker, the beetles in question are saw-tooth 
green beetles, (chomp, chomp) associated with cereal. 
We have not been able to name the brand. 

(Laughter) 

Mr. Speaker, they are not directly associated with a 
health hazard, but are a public nuisance and unsightly. 
The problem is one apartment block and there is diffi
culty rega~ding access to one particular apartment. 

Our Environmental Health Officer will be in Faro the 
week of May 9th, 1977 for investigation and discussion 
with town officials;.;;boa <i of health, the land owner and 
the tenant. 

Regarding the ins tiide which has been used in these 
cases, the insectic· e is called "Buggy-Whip" -

( Laughter) I 
-- and is a well recognized insecticide. It's safety is 
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dependent upon its correct use. We are hoping to re
move all the people atone time from the entire building, 
however, we may require other action as one tenant is 
not coopera"tmg. 

Mr. Speaker, I would like to add, for the reassurance 
of all Members, that these saw-tooth beetles, which 
s<;>~nd pretty ferocious, are very small insects, barely 
visible. There have been only three units of housing, 
three apartment units involved. Two of them have been 
completely under control for some time and I'm in
formed as of this morning from Faro, that the third one 
is really looking hard to find a beetle these days . 

. Howev~r, I would like at this time, Mr. Speaker, to 
g1ve credit to the Board of Health at Faro, which have 
put together a package of information regarding this 
particular insect and have handed out in cooperation 
with the land owner and the Environm~ntal Health Of
ficer, instructions on how to use insecticide. 

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Pelly 
River. 

Mr. McCall: Just a supplementary to what the 
~inister_ h~s just said, Mr. Speaker, I'm just wondering 
1f the Mm1ster of Health can advise me whether it be 
wise that I change my brand from com flakes to some 
other cereal in the morning? 

Mr. Speaker: I think we'll disallow that question. 
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse South 

Centre? 

Mr. Hibberd: Is the Honourable Member from Pelly 
afraid that he also might be susceptible to " Buggy· 
Whip"? 

(Laughter J 

Mr. Speaker: I must disallow that question as well. 
Have you any further questions? 
We will then proceed on the Order Paper to Orders of 

the Day, under Motions for the Production of Papers. 

ORDERS OF THE DAY 

MOTIONS FOR THE PRODUCTION OF PAPERS 

Item Number 1 

Madam Clerk: Item 1, standing in the name of the 
Honourable Member, Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared 
to discuss Item 1? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale, seconded by the 
Hon<;>urable_ Member from Kluane, that copies of all 
replies received to date by the Economic Research and 
Planning _Unit,_in response to their letter of February 7, 
1977, dealmg w1th Phase One of Public Participation in a 
Plan for Yukon's Future, be tabled in this Assembly 
forthwith. 



Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is car
ried. 

(Motion carried) 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, on a point of privilege, 
I'm sorry things went a little too fast. In relation to this 
particular motion, the Government has no objections to 
tabling the letters that were sent to the Government, but 
I think that all Members must be aware that we must 
have concurrence of the parties that have written to the 
Government, because they are obviously not aware that 
they would have been tabled in public. So, prior to any 
letters being tabled, we must get their consent in rela
tion to tabling these particular documents. 

Mr. Speaker: We will proceed to Motions. 

MOTIONS 

Item Number 1 

Madam Clerk : Item 1, standing in the name of the 
Honourable Member, Ms . Millard. 

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared 
to deal with Item 1? 

Ms. Millard: Yes, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Ogilvie , seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Hootalinqua; 

THAT it is the opinion of this House that the Public 
Service Commission should look into the possibility of 
altering Public Service Commission Regulations 20 to 
24, to indicate a time limit within which a classification 
review decision must be made and acted upon by the 
Commission. 

The Honourable Member from Ogilvie? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Speaker, this is pretty well a 
straightforward Motion of a housekeeping nature, 

· which was brought to my attention in my work dealing 
with the motion which was discussed yesterday con
cerning classification review. 

At this time the Public Service Commission Regula
tions attached to the Public Service Commission Ordi
nance show no time limit within which a classification 
review decision must be made, nor does it show a time 
limit within which the decision must be acted upon. 

At the moment, the Regulations 20 to 24 cover re
quests from the Deputy Head for a review, requests 
from the employee for a review, supplying information..,.; 
concerning it, and notification of the decision having 
been made, and dealing with further reviews so that 
there is a gap in there in which it shows that a review 
request, in actuality, doesn' t have to be acted upon. 
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If there was a time limit put on it, then the decision 
would have to be made within a certain time and acted 
upon within a certain time. 

Just in conclusion, I would say that I 've discussed this 
with the Chairman of the Statutory Instruments Com
mittee and he has seconded the motion. We are in ag
reement that this is the route that should be used, rather.' 
than referring it to the Standing Committee at this time. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Klon
dike? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Speaker, maybe I shouldn' t 
stand up, Mr. Speaker, but I find it very strange when 
we have the Committee on Statutory Instruments and 
yet if the Honourable Member would have taken the 
trouble to talk to Committee Members , she would have 
found out that we are planning to review the whole regu
lations of the Public Service Commission Ordinance . I 
don't think it's the proper way to go, to bring this part of 
the Regulations in the House right now at this moment. 

I think it's like in another regulation, there's all sorts 
of fields that need to be reviewed and I don't think that's 
the proper way of doing it right now. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua? 

Mr. F1eming: Mr. Speaker, I am seconding the mo
tion for the Honourable Member merely because she 
came to me with a problem and I, upon reading the 
same thing as she did, I realized there is a problem there 
and has been a problem, and I don't really feel , as being 
Chairman of that Committee, I don't feel that this 
should infringe on any Member, the right to bring some
thing to this House just to be discussed and possibly 
done there. 

As Chairman of that Committee, I'm sure we're going 
through all the Regulations we possibly can and will be 
continuing in the future, but we are not going to get 
through all of them immediately, there's no question 
about that. I presume there will be more motions of this 
type come to the floor too. On seconding the motion, as I 
say, I just wish to see the Honourable Member have her 
right to bring something to the House and question that 
problem. I see the same problem there in the time that a 
person could be sitting around for months on end and not 
getting an answer to anything, and I think there should 
be a time limit in it. 

If the Honourable Members here will all read 20 to 24, 
you'll see that it has been deleted. There's nothing there 
whatsoever to say that they ~._, ll act at any time until 
such time as after they have decided what's going to be 
done, and then they have ten days to inform the person, 
but nothing, nothing tells them that they must do it at 
any time. They could go on forever and never do it if 
they have a problem. 

That's the reason it's here. I don't think it conflicts 
actually. The Honourable Member has a point, from 
Klondike, but it doesn't really conflict with our job as a 
Committee here. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Pelly 
River. 

Mr. McCall: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. As you can 
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see. Mr . Speaker, even this Committee doesn't tend to 
agree. I do not agree with our Chairman . I do not agree 
with the motion. I believe the Member that was putting 
forward this motion should have been advised by the 
Chairman that maybe we could have brought forward 
the Public Service Commission Regulations at an ear
lier date than what was anticipated in order to cover off 
such a concern. 

I do not agree with this motion at all, Mr. Speaker. We 
have already been advised that we will be going through 
the Public Service Commission Regulations, which this 
motion is making reference to. If this be the case, 
maybe we should concern ourselves with some other 
regulations in the Public Service Commission Regula
tions and let other motions come into this House thew ay 
this one is. 

Mr. Speaker: Any further debate? 
The Honourable Minister of Education? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I have to agree with 
the Honourable Member from Pelly and the Honourable 
Member from Klondike that, if Regulations are going to 
be reviewed, they should be reviewed in totality, not on 
an ad hoc basis, and this is what appears to have hap
pened in relation to this particular motion. 

I'm sure that there 's a definite reason for no time 
limit. I don' t have the answer at the present time, but I 
am sure that, prior to passing a motion like this, we 
would want to know the definite reasons why it's been 
left open the way it is. If the Statutory Instruments 
Committee is going to review the Public Service Com
mission Ordinance, it should be done in totality, not on 
an ad hoc basis. I cannot support the motion at the 
present time, Mr. Speaker . 

Mr. Speaker: Any further debate? 
Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Some Members: Disagreed. 

Mr. Speaker: Division has been called. 
It has been moved by the Honourable Member from 

Ogilvie, seconded by the Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua, that it is the opinion of this House that the 
Public Service Commission should look into the possi
bility of altering Public Service Commission Regula
tions 20 to 40 to indicate a time limit within which a. 
classification review decision must be made and acted 
upon by the Commission. 

Madam Clerk, would you kindly poll the House? 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Disagree. 
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Madam Clerk: The Honourable Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr. Mcin
tyre? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Yea. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr. 
Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr. Hib
berd? 

Mr. Hibberd: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr. Flem
ing? 

Mr. Fleming: Agree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Ms. Mil
lard? 

Ms. MUiard: Agree . 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr. 
McCall? 

Mr. McCall: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mrs. Wat
son? 

Mrs. Watson: Disagree. 

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr. 
Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Nay. 

Madam Clerk: Mr. Speaker, the results of division 
are : three yea, eight nay. 

Mr. Speaker: I must then declare that the motion 
has been defeated. 

(Motion defeated ) 

Item Number Z 

Madam Clerk: Item 2, standing in the name of the 
Honourable Member, Ms. Millard. 

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared 
to discuss Item 2? 

Ms. MBlard: Yes, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Ogilvie, seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse South Centre, that it is the 
opinion of this House that the Administration should 

./ 



request the Honourable Romeo LeBlanc, Minister of 
Fisheries and Environment, to look into the possibility 
of immediate environmental impact studies on the 
building of the Dempster Highway, particularly con
cerning impact on the Dempster caribou herd. 

The Honourable Member from Ogilvie. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Speaker, at first glance, this mo
tion may seem to be redundant to the one we just re
cently passed - put forward by the Member from 
Riverdale concerning the Game Department and the 
study that they're doing into this very aspect. 

However, I feel that we should also try to get input 
from the federal people on this and certainly I have all 
faith in the Game Branch study, but I don't feel that our 
budget allows them to do the study really any justice. I 
feel that the Federal Minister of Environment should 
have been involved long before this and must be in
volved now. It's a federal road we're discussing, a fed
eral decision was made to build the road and I feel that 
federal money should be put into any kind of environ
mental impact study on the Dempster. 

It really is an eleventh hour motion ; it's something 
that should have been done a l9ng time ago. I've written 
the Minister on this, spurred on by the Foothills study on 
the possible - to me, a very real possibility of the 
pipeline going down the Dempster eventually, and I 
would urge the concurrence of the House on this motion. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? 
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse River

dale? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I'd have no prob
lem with this motion at all. The Member from Ogilvie 
did mention that we did pass a motion in this House - I 
think it was April 13th - with respect to the same sub
ject. In that motion, it also called for the Government of 
Yukon to explore possibilities with the Federal Gov
ernment for whatever funding or increased manpower 
or facilities to carry out certainly the type of study that 
the Honourable Member from Ogilvie is looking for at 
this time with respect to the caribou herd on the Demps
ter and other impact concerns, environmental impact 
concerns. 

I would have no problem, Mr. Speaker; it's quite a 
positive motion. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Klon
dike? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I'm not going to 
stand up and talk against the motion; I just would like to 
have a minor amendment in there. I would like to sug· 
gest to the House and to you, Mr. Speaker, to maybe 
read it as a typographical error. There's no Dempster 
Caribou herd ; the herd is known as the Porcupine herd. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? 
The Honourable Member from Hootalinqua? 

Mr, Fleming: Yes, Mr. Speaker. I would rise in sup
port of the motion ; however, I just have a comment to 
make that I hope that this motion is not going to go the 
same route - not the motion, but the fact that last year 
we had a study such as this done on some areas in Teslin 
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by the Fisheries and, in the process of it, I think every
body that was doing the study got lost. I simply hope 
they don' tgo up the Dempster somewhere and get lost. 

Mr. Speaker: Order please. The Honourable 
Member from Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I have a great deal of 
problem considering this motion since, the other day, 
we did request that a study be done by our Game Branch 
and to have federal input. What we're doing is request
ing the Minister 'of Fisheries and Environment to do a 
study and I am sure that the environmental branch of 
Northern Affairs are doing a study. 

I just feel that, somehow or other, we have to s tart 
correlating some of the spending that we are doing on 
environmental studies or all kinds of studies in the coun
try. There are people sitting in these departments who 
would just love to drop their pencil when they get a 
Resolution such as this , to start another study. I am just 
not going to support it, because I really ~on'tknow what 
I am supporting, how many studies have been done, 
what kind of a study are you looking at? A $Z00,000.00 
one or a $5,000.00 one. 

If it's a $5,000.00 one, it's a waste of money; it it's 
$200,000.00, it's too much money. Foothills, or a pipeline, 
if they are going to do it, are going to have to carry on 
that kind of a study, our National Energy Board should 
advise that they do. 

Mr. Speaker, I'm afraid that my thrifty background 
and my thrifty character is not going to let me support 
it, and honestly, what we are supporting is a pig in a 
poke, so I'll be voting against it. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Health 
and Welfare? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, I require further 
information before I can make an intelligent decision on 
this proposal and I'm wondering if we can be informed 
regarding what studies are being conducted, by whom, 
and for how much, before we approach this question? 

I understand that our own department is already 
launching or co-ordinating such a study. Perhaps Mr. 
Commissioner could assist us in this matter? 

Mr. Speaker: I don't believe that it would be per
missible for Mr. Commissioner to address the House 
during a discussion or a debate on a motion. 

Is there any further debate? The Honourable Minister 
of Education? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, in view of the com
ments that have been made, I would move that we move 
Motion Number 25 into Committee for further discus
sion. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there a seconder? 

Mr. McCall: I'll second that motion. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Pelly River, that Resolu
tion Number 25 be referred to Committee of the Whole. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

() 

) 

) 



Some Members: Question. 

'VIr. Speaker : Are you agreed '? 

Some Members: Agreed . 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion carried. 

'.Wotion carried! 

:vir. Speaker : We wil l now proceed to Pu'blic Bills. 

PUBLIC BILLS 

Madam Clerk: Third reading. Bill 10. Credit Union 
Ordinance. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Porter Creek. 

Amendments to Bill 10, First and Second Reading 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I move. seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre . that the amendments to Bill Number 10 be now 
read a first and second time . 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek. seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre. that the amendments to Bill Number 10 be now 
read a first and second time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed '? 

Some Members: Agreed . 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the motion is carried . 

1M o tion carried 1 

Mr. Speaker: When shall the Bill be read for the 
third time? 

Bill10, Third Reading 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Now, Mr. Speaker. I move , sec
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
North Centre, that Bill Number 10 be now read a third 
time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek , seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre, that Bill Number 10 be now read a third time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

"- Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 
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Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is car
ried. 

1 Motion carried 1 

Mr. Speaker: Are you prepared to adopt a title to the 
i..:ill ? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded 
by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre. that Bill Number 10 do now pass and that the 
title be as on the Order Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek. seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre. that Bill Number 10 do now pass and that the 
title be as on the Order Paper. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed ? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is car
ried . 

! Motion carried! 

Mr. Speaker: Bill Number 10 has passed this House. 

Madam Clerk: Third reading, Bill 12, Recreation 
Development Ordinance. 

Amendments to Bill12, First and Second Reading 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr . Speaker, I move. seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre, that the amendments to Bill Number 12 be now 
read a first and second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek. seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre, that the amendments to Bill Number 12 be now 
read a first and second time. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the motion is carried. 

!Motion carried ! 

Mr. Speaker: When shall the Bill be read for the 
third time? 

Bill 12, Third Reading 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Now, Mr. Speaker. I move, sec-



onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
North Centre, that Bill Number 12 be now read a third 
time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre, that Bill Number 12 be now read a third time. 

The Honourable Member from Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, I would like to comment 
briefly on the Recreation Development Ordinance. I 
think that all Members are aware that I had some grave 
concerns over a part of this Ordinance, and I still do. I 
don't think people in this House realize the major, and I 
say major, change of policy in the delivery of recreation 
in some of the communities in the Yukon. I don't think 
the communities are even aware of the changes that will 
be taking place themselves. 

I can see some very difficult times ahead for some of 
the communities. I would have hoped that the Legisla
tion would have started with the position that the com
munities are at now and let them make the decision, 
rather than impose the decision on what route to go on 
another body that never before has handled recreation 
in these communities. 

There are some good aspects to the Bill. There will be 
provision for some assistance to some of the very much 
smaller communities in our Territory that we were talk
ing about the other day when we were talking about 
electoral redistribution. Communities that have not a 
large population, that have a very specific community 
interest, and that certainly will require some assistance 
from the government in order to have any type of recre
ation program, so there will be more funding coming 
toward that. 

I must again express my concern about the fact that 
we are almost leaving in limbo the communities in this 
Territory who, on their own, slaved and volunteered and 
contributed to build recreational facilities, community 
halls, skating rinks, curling rinks, some of them I sup
pose even swimming pools. These people, in order to 
hang on to their own capital investment, are not getting 
a great deal of assistance from the Territorial Govern
ment in this Legislation in order to keep operating those 
facilities. 

We know, Mr. Speaker, that operational costs have 
increased markedly in the last three or four years and 
still we're using the same formula that we used three 
years ago, taxes have increased. I am concerned that 
the independence and the- ability of people who want to 
do something on a volunteer basis is going to be - is 
being eroded very badly. 

We are going to be looking at government takeover of 
these facilities. Once that happens, Mr. Speaker, a 
great deal of that spirit that we know in the Yukon, that 
volunteer, we want to build something, we want to 
create something, is going to be gone and they're going 
to say, well, the government's running that, let them 
send over a plumber or let them pick up the garbage or 
let them do it. I think this is the type of thing that we 
don't want to see happening and this legislation is help
ing to bring that about. 

If the government should see fit, for next year, to 
provide some more financial assistance, and I'm not 
asking for a great deal , I'm just asking for ~no ugh to be 
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able to help them keep the doors open to help them pay 
that light bill , to help them pay that fuel biJI , and to help 
them pay their taxes - I would hope that next year the 
government will be prepared not to leave this one sector 
of our Yukon , which is very historic, in limbo and make 
some provision so that they can in fact continue to exist 
and provide the service that they embarked upon quite a 
number of years ago. 

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Speaker, before the passing 
of this Bill I would also like to say a few words. I think it 
has been well said by the Member from Kluane and 
these are my own feelings exactly. I think we are going 
to, in time, take away the initiative of the people and the 
old spirit of saying, let's do it ourselves, and let's have 
our own thing and do our own thing, and we're going to 
have government control. It is not necessarily in this 
Bill, but it is a start, and I would have much preferred to 
see the government come forth as many times as we 
have asked them. So many times where the tax forgive
ness program or something to help these communities 
instead of this type of legislation. 

Then we wouldn' t have needed this type of legislation, 
I don't think. I don' t really believe that we have to go 
through this much and put them under this much control 
to give them a few dollars to help them run their places 
and to help the recreation system in the Yukon Territ
ory. 

I feel that, as time goes on, the Government will move 
in. There is no question about it; they will move in. They 
will take over most of the places and we have the prob
lem, which I don't think the Government looked into at 
the time, and again we have to bring up the native 
peoples. I don't like to use them here in this House as 
native peoples, but they have a different agreement 
with a Government that's above us. Up to this date, it 
has not been too bad, because we, the people, get along. 
They get along. We get along together. The funding that 
is going towards their recreation and the funding that is 
going towards ours is not being divided or split only by 
the Governments, but once we bring this in here, they 
will also have the problem as to how they are really 
going to join us or keep going with us. 

I'm sure that, even though there's nothing in here 
says they can' t, they're going to agree wholeheartedly 
with that, that they can come still and join us and be one 
of us, but we're going to have to work just that much 
harder because the Federal Government is up above, 
still doing their thing and not really realizing that we 
want to get together. 

Mr. Speaker, I, of course, have to agree with the Bill 
due to the fact that my constituents can see a few dollars 
and they have seen that and they wish to have those few 
dollars and, as the Honourable Member from Kluane 
has said, I don't think they really realize exactly how far 
they're going to go into this thing, what they're going to 
get into. Some of them don't, some of them can see it, 
and they are very, very outspoken about it too, but the 
majority just don't see where the Bill is actually going 
The club has been there in the little towns, are there, 
they're all together, they don't see what can happen in 
something like this. All they see is the fact that the 

) 



Government is trying to give them some more money 
and that ts really ~ot exactly what the Bill says . If you 
read ~etween the ltnes a little bit, it says that someday 
we wtll have complete control. 

Hopefully, at that time, they will forgi ve the taxes . 
Mr. Speaker . 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Educa
tion ? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I cannot agree with 
the statements.made by the two previous speakers . I 
thtnk that the Btl!, for one thing, gives a firm legislative 
~ase for recreation which we have not had up until this 
!•me. It h~s always been done by Regulation ; therefore 
tt formalizes thts Government's commitment in the 
area of recrea tion. 

The Honourable Member from Hootalinqua says that 
we will be giving money straight to the communities . 
This is not the case, Mr. Speaker. As I explained during 
debate on the Bill, it is a cost-shared program which will 
be provided to communities for assistance for recrea
tion programming. So in other words, the volunteer 
concept will not be destroyed, all we're doing is attempt
ing to enrich their present programs that they're run
ning in the communities. 

Also, at the same time, Mr. Speaker, with the 
amendments that were brought in yesterday, we have 
provided for the continuation of a community organiza
tion running the recreation programs being provided in 
the community, on the insistence of the two Honourable 
Members that have just previously spoken. 

So I think, Mr . Speaker, that we are going in the right 
direction. We a re not going for government control. I 
personally do not believe in government control, but I do 
believe that we have to make a commitment in this 
particular area and this is exactly what we 've done. I 
think there's going to be a few problems in relation to 
change with the program , of providing money at the 
local level rather than having it distributed at the 
territorial-wide level as we have in the past in totality , 
but once those are ironed out, I think the program 
should work well , Mr. Speaker, and I think it should 
work to the benefit of the people of the Yukon so that we 
can get the small communities in the outside regions 
involved in recreation and participating with other 
Yukoners in the various recreational endeavours they 
want to pursue. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? 
Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question . 

Mr. Speaker : Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare tha t the motion is car
ried . 

' Motion carried) 

Mr. Speaker: Are you prepared to adopt a title to the 
Bill ? 
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Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes. Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded 
by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre. that Bill Number 10 do now pass and the title be 
as on the Order Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: Is that Bill Number 12? 

Hon. \'lr. Lang: Bill Number 12. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honoura ble 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek , seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
~entre . that Bill Number 12 do now pass and that the 
tttle be as on the Order Paper . 

Are you prepared for the question ? 

Some Members: Question . 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the motion is carried 
and that Bill Number 12 has passed this House. 

r Motion carried 1 

Madam Clerk: Third reading Bi1115, An Ordinance 
to Amend the Local Improvement District Ordinance . 

Mr. Speaker: The Honoura ble Member fr om 
Whitehorse North Centre. 

AMENDMENTS TO BILL 15, FIRST AND SECOND 
READING 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I move, sec
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West, that the amendments to Bill Number 15 be now 
read a first and second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West that 
the amendments to Bill Number 15 be now read ~ first 
and second time. 

Are you prepared for the question ? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agr eed . 

Mr. Speaker: I shall dedare the motion is carr ied . 

(Motion carried) 

Mr. Speaker: When shall the Bill be read for a third 
time? 

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre? 

BILL 15 - THIRD READING 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I move, sec-



onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West, that Bill Number 15 be now read a third time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre , seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West, that 
Bill Number 15 be now read a third time. 

The Honourable Member from Kluane? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, this Bill, I think a lot of 
us look at it as though they 're just routine types of 
amendments, but actually there was some major policy 
changes in the Bill by the mere fact that the Local Im
provement District Boards will now be going to five 
members. It's a completely new concept and will be, 
I'm sure, adding to the ability of the board of trustees to 
function and also will certainly, I'm sure, improve the 
manner in which they are able to function. 

I'm very happy to see this major change being made 
in the legislation . I do have some concerns about the 
sections regarding the elections for boards of trustees in 
the L.l.D.'s and I am rather dismayed and I know that a 
lot of people who are acting as trustees on, for L.l.D. 's 
when they look at the pages and pages of procedure that 
has to be followed to carry out an election, I'm sure that 
they'll have a few misgivings also. 

I can understand why a more program type of election 
has to be held, but I am afraid that I can't agree with it 
being quite that sophisticated and, as I've stated in the 
House when we were discussing these various sections, 
that I'm very hopeful that the Department of Local 
Government, in the first few years in the operation of 
this section of the Bill, will be providing as much gui
dance as it's possible to do in order to provide some sort 
of a pattern in the communities so that they can take 
over the operation of these very, I would say, complex 
type of regulations. 

But, Mr. Speaker, lam pleased with the restoftheBill 
and, Mr. Speaker, I will be supporting it. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? 
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse River

dale? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I won't add too 
much more to what the Honourable Member from 
Kluane has said. I'd like to compliment the Minister of 
Local Government though, on the Bill. He did provide 
the amendments that certainly were suggested by the 
House and they came through very nicely and I don't 
think he had too much trouble in getting support for the 
Bill. 
· I do have some problems with the elections portion d 
the Bill as welL It 's not because of the Local Improve
ment Districts Ordinance, I think it's a straight lift-<>ut 
out of the Elections Ordinance and I think it's time that 
we did take a look at the Elections Ordinance and some
day open that up for a good study and debate. 

I realize that the system that is provided in our Fed
eral statutes and the provincial jurisdictions is quite 
antiquated and no matter if you're dealing at a munici
pal level , or what, when you're dealing with the Elec
tions Ordinance there is usually some problems. I think 
I was discussing with the Legal Advisor one day, and he 
indicated to me, he said you know, that is a pretty anti
quated piece of legislation and someday maybe it 
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should be overhauled. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua? 

Mr. F1eming: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I only have a very 
short comment, because I do think as the Members have 
said, the Member of Local Government has done a fine 
job of bringing this forward.lt's what we asked for and I 
think we've got it. There was one item that I think we 
slipped by yesterday very quickly and it never even was 
spoken much about it, and that was actually what they 
may be paid for their work. I'm sure their work is going 
to be a lot more with all the elections, the handle and so 
forth and so on. This, I noticed, nobody seemed to worry 
about that at all. 

Reading it last night, I was a little apprehensive about 
just the way it is written out as to how much you would 
get, but other than that, Mr. Speaker, I concur very 
strongly with the Bill. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? 
Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion has 
carried. 

!Motion carried) 

Mr. Speaker: Are you prepared to adopt the title to 
the Bill? 

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I move, sec
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West that Bill Number 15 do now pass and that the title 
be as on the Order Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West that Bill 
Number 15 do now pass and that the title be as on the 
Order Paper. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the motion as carried. 

(Motion carried) 

Mr. Speaker: Bill Number 15 has passed this HousE ) 
The Honourable Member from Pelly River? 

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I would move Mr. 

) 



Speaker do now leave the Chair and the House resolve 
into Committee of the Whole. 

Mr. Fleming: I'll second that motion. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Pelly River, seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Hootalinqua, that Mr. Speaker do now 
leave the Chair and that the House resolve into Commit
tee of the Whole. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the motion as carried. 

r Motion carried) 

rMr. Speaker leaves the Chair) 

COMMITIEE OF THE WHOLE 

Mr. Chairman: I call this Committee to order, and 
declare a brief recess. 

rRECESSJ 

Mr. Chairman: I call this Committee to order. 
First consideration this morning will be the Green 

Paper on Bid Differentials for Northern Enterprises. 
It's housecleaning time. 
Do all Members have their copies? 
Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I don 't know who the 
specialist is in the House on this that we can question, 
but I am wondering just what, exactly what contracts 
would this Bid Differential apply to? 

Paragraph three states that the instructions have 
been given by the Department of Indian and Northern 
Affairs and they apply on construction and selected ser
vice contracts funded by D.I.A.N.D. , and include those 
entered into by the Government of Yukon on behalf of 
D.I.A.N.D., construction contracts under the Engineer 
Services Agreement. 
. Would these contracts also be some of our capital 
programs contracts and if anyone has any idea of what 
they mean by "selected service contracts"? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would hope that 
somebody was here that might be able to answer some 
of these questions, such as, I would like to ask who the 
contracting authority actually is and who's going to be 
that contracting authority? If anybody can answer 
these questions then we would, I think, get on with it? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

) 
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, the person who 

should be questioned is the person who signed the Gree~ 
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Paper, the Assistant Commissioner Executive, Mr. Gil
lespie. Unfortunately, Mr. Gillespie is presently con
ducting interviews for a Game Director's job. 

Mr. Chairman: Is he going to be available, Mr. 
McKinnon, do you know if he 'll be available this after
noon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: We can certainly find out, Mr. 
Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Because our time is limited as far as 
consideration of this is concerned. 

We'll defer further consideration of this until we have 
more knowledge. 

We will then go on to the White Paper on Decentraliza
tion. 

Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, if I could request that 
this remain in Committee for our Session in Dawson 
City, if I could have concurrence of Committee for that? 

Mr. Chairman: Does Committee agree? 
Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, that Session in Dawson 
City, I'm afraid won't be long enough to discuss a seri
ous matter like this. 

I would be against concurrence of the request by the 
Honourable Member from Ogilvie because it's a serious 
matter and I think we should take the time when we 
have it here in the House . When the Session is going to be 
in Dawson, there's going to be all sorts of activities 
going on and probably some of the Members won' t be 
available, or maybe we are going to adjourn early and 
there won't be any discussion at all. 

I think this matter is too serious and we shouldn't 
leave it in th!:: aouse to wait until we get up to Dawson 
City. We should discuss it now. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I do think it's very seri
ous and I think it involves the people in Dawson to a 
great extent, particularly since the City of Dawson has 
been making representation to the Government on this 
concern, and in fact I 've been tentatively lining up a 
witness from the City of Dawson to speak to the Motion 
or speak to the paper if it were done in Dawson City. As 
far as I know, there isn't any work lined up for Dawson 
City and I was just hoping it could happen there, where 
it really is of great importance to the people. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms . Millard, if you'd like to propose 
a motion to that effect and then we could have the opin
ion of Committee ... 

Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, it's my understand
ing that at least some of the Members will not be able to 
attend that particular Session in Dawson due to other 
commitments, so I would suggest that we carry on with 
discussing the matter here. 

I have to agree with the Member from Klondike; I 
think it is a serious matter and I think that I, personally, 



do believe that it should be discussed fully rather than 
try tc keep it within a time-frame of a couple of hours or 
whatever time it takes . 

Mr. CIJairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I certainly hope we are 
not going to discuss it more than a couple of hours. 
because it is a very simple concept. However, I would 
request that we have Mr. Gillespie as a witness and 
again we'll have to ask him if he'll come for this, so we'll 
have to defer it at the moment anyway. 

Mr. Chairman: Okay , does Committee concur then 
that we leave this until Mr . Gillespie is available? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, that is if everyone 
seems to think we have to discuss it in Whitehorse. I 
would certainl y still much prefer it be discussed in 
Dawson. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I understood 
that the Session in Dawson was to celebrate the 80th 
Anniversary, 75th Anniversary, celebrations of the City 
of Dawson, and I can assure the Honourable Member 
that the Government is thinking of legislation and some 
legislation that will be very applicable to the City of 
Dawson, though it will be minor legislation for that Ses
sion and to help Dawson celebrate that 75th Anniver
sary. 

I have a little problem of thinking of going to Dawson 
on something that is obviously going to be controversial, 
of a controversial nature, and that we will obviousl y 
need witnesses and support staff coming from 
Whitehorse to be able to discuss it properly. That 
wasn't, to me, the concept of the celebration of the 75th 
Anniversary of the City of Dawson through the sitting of 
the Legislative Assembly in Dawson. 

I know that some Members have indicated that they 
are not going to be available for the Dawson Session and 
they have also indicated that they are interested in this 
discussion of the Decentralization, so I have a lot of 
problems in going along with the concept that this 
should be one of the items for discussion at the Dawson 
Session, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard . 

Ms. Millard: Just the same comment on that, I think 
it's most appropriate that we respond very seriously to 
the City of Dawson's request that Decentralization be 
taken seriously and so I see that, if we're going to be 
going to Dawson City simply as a fancy gesture , that we 
aren't really responding to the City of Dawson in the 
way that I feel we should on this matter. 

Still, and the witness I've requested, Mr. Gillespie, 
who has written the White Paper, will be in Dawson at 
the time so there's no problem as far as witnesses are 
concerned. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I just wish the Honourable 
Member from Klondike and the Honourable Member 
from Ogilvie would get together on why we are going to 
Dawson, because I hear a completely different attitude 
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from the Honourable Member from Klondike than I do 
from the Honourable Member from Ogilvie. If we're 
going to get into a controversy just on whether we're 
going to go and what we're going to do in Dawson. 
maybe it's better off that we forget the whole concept. 
VIr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson'? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr . Chairman, it's unfortunate that 
this is on in this route. I can understand the Honourable 
Member from Ogilvie being very concerned ; it is a very 
important question for Dawson City but I think they 
have to be very careful. We could be setting a precedent 
when a controversial or very important topic has to be 
debated regarding a certain centre , or a certain area in 
the Yukon; we might, by doing this, be setting a prece
dent and various communities may be expecting us to 
sit in these various communities. 

F'or example, if we would be discussing the Cottage 
Hospital at F'aro when it comes up for debate, it could 
well be that the F'aro Board of Health would request that 
we have our discussions and debates there at F'aro so 
that they could make direct representation,; so we 
might just be setting a precedent. 

I was very hopeful, or it was my understanding, that 
when we agreed to go to Dawson it was just in recogni
tion, it's almost a ceremonial trip, in recognition of their 
75th Anniversary, so I personally feel that I think it 
should - Decentralization should be discussed here in 
the House where every other business of the House is 
usually discussed. 

Mr. Chairman: I think the consensus of Committee 
is that it , indeed, should be discussed at this time, when 
Mr . Gillespie is available, so we'll defer consideration 
now on it until we can find Mr. Gillespie. 

F'or consideration, we have Bill Number 17, Second 
Appropriation Ordinance, 1977-78. 

It is the opinion of the Chair that Committee is not 
competent to deal with this Ordinance until we have 
received the money message from the Commissioner 
and so I would request that a Member of the Executive 
Committee obtain such message before we can consider 
this Bill. 

We'll go on to Motion 2, that was passed into Commit
tee this morning . 

It was moved by Ms. Millard that it is the opinion of 
this House that the Administration should request the 
Honourable Romeo LeBlanc, Minister of Fisheries and 
Environment, to look into the possibility of immediate 
environmental impact studies on the building of the 
Dempster Highway, particularly concerning impact on 
the Dempster caribou herd. 

Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I have made requests 
since there was some questions brought up this morning 
concerning the various reports that have already been 
done on the Dempster and the need for other reports, et 
cetera - I've made a request of the Assistant Commis
sioner, Mr. Gillespie, since there is no Director of 
Game, to have the Acting Director of Game come as a 
witness, and, apparently, he's standing - I tried t 
phone him to let him know what time it might be ; he wl 
talking to Mr. Gillespie, so I'm sure he 's prepared t .. 

) 



~""""'\, f come if the Committee ... 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman , I don ' t know what 
the procedure-- I know what the pro~edure has been in 
the past, but it appears to be changmg .. I was al\~·ays 
under the impression that, if an Executtve Commtttee 
Member was responsible for a particular portfolio, that 
he or she appear before Committee . 

Ms. Millard : Well , Mr. Chairman, as far as I under
stand, Mr. Gillespie doesn' t feel competent in this area. 
He doesn't have a degree in biology on the caribou and 
Manfred Hoefs certainly has far more knowled ge of the 
situation, but of course, we can wait for Mr. Gillespie if 
that's ... 

Mr. Chairman: It certainly is Mr. Gillespie 's re
sponsibility to answer fo it, Ms. Millard. 

Mr. Chairman: It would appear that we have a 
number of items that are ready for consider3tion when 
people are available. I would suggest that, because ~f 
the various problems that we have , that we recess unt!l 
one-thirty. 

r Recess) 

Mr. Chairman: I call this Committee to order. 
As the first order of business , we will consider Motion 

Number 2 and for this purpose we have as witnesses 
Mr. Peter Gillespie and Dr . Manfred Hoefs, Acting Di
rector of the Game Department. 

I'll read the Motion. It was moved by Ms. Millard that 
it is the opinion of this House that the Administration 
should request the Honourable Romeo Le.Blanc, Mini~· 
ter of Fisheries and Environment, to look mto the posst· 
bilitv of immediate environmental impact studies on 
the huilding of the Dempster Highway! particularly 
concerning impact on the Dempster canbou herd. 

Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, there may seem to be 
some questions this morning ~oncerning .various 
studies that had been done on thts very subJect and 
whether or not any more were needed and so on, so the 
witness may be able to answer these kinds of questions. 

Perhaps I could start off. I know of only ~wo environ
mental studies done on the Dempster Highway. The 
environmental overview of the Dempster Highway by, I 
believe you pronounce it Tywoniuk and Inglis; and 
another one an environmental impact study of the De
mpster Highway by Schultz International . If it would be 
possible to ask the witness for his , either one of the 
witness's, professional views of these environmental 
studies and whether they are sufficient to meet the 
needs of today 's problem. 

Mr. Chairman: Specifically what environmental 
studies are going on and what is their purpose? 

Ms. Millard: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman; these 
studies have been done. One was done in 1974 and one 
was done in 1972. There are none being done presently, 
as far as I know but that could be another question. I I 

"- ) Mr. Gillespie: I would like to rely on Dr. Hoefs, if I 
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may, if he recalls those particular studies and for his 
assessment of their value. 

Dr. Hoefs: So far as I know, only those studies have 
been made, you're right, and I have to admit that I got 
very short notice about this meeting and. I couldn' t pre
pare for it, but the quality of those studtes was not. too 
good. In those studies, several recommendations 
were made to D.P.W. to follow them up with more de
tailed studies. 

In particular, there was very little work done on the 
possible effects of the Dempster Highway on the Por· 
cupine caribou herd. 

As far as I know, the short study was based on only one 
week interviewed by the researchers and that was done 
in summer and the caribou were not there. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman , so the witness has said 
that these studies do recommend further studies them
selves. I wonder if the witness could give us his personal 
assessment to tell us whether or not he feels that further 
s tudy could be beneficial? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order, 
you don't ask him to g~ve his ~ersona.l --you could ~sk 
him to give his professiOnal pomt of vtew, butcertamly 
not his personal. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman , I will change that to 
professional point of view. 

Mr. Chairman: Dr. Hoefs, what is your professional 
point of view regarding ... 

Dr. Hoefs: The Games Branch is doing research -- it 
has started doing research now. We have one man year 
in the current fiscal year and up to one '?an ye~r casual 
help, if necessary, to study the Porcupme canbou herd 
and much of that work will be done along the Dempster 
in winter and we hope to expand that study in future 
years. 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, if I may just add to 
that, we believe as a government, on the basis of addi
tional advice from the Game Department, that more 
than just that amount of wo~k is .required on the Demps · 
ter Highway and we have, .m J?ld-Dec:ember .las t year , 
written to the Canadian Wtldlife Servtce, whtch comes 
under Mr. LeBlanc, seeking co-Qperative assistance 
from that Service to expand our research work along 
the Dempster Highway. 

We received an expression of interest from the Cana
dian Wildlife Service, but no concrete supl><?rt, the 
reason being that they lacked the ~unds to provtde that 
support in this fiscal year. They dtd not close the door, 
though, for the future and I think will be more than 
ready, or have indicated t? us tha~ they are more than 
ready, to discuss CO-Qperattve studtes such as they ~av~ 
with the provinces, which they gen~rally do on t~e mvt
tation of the provinces to help a provmce or a tern tory to 
do this kind of research work. 

So, I am hopeful, or we are hopeful, that next ye~r 
they will see fit to allocate some of their funds for thts 
kind of purpose. 



I would add that a motion of this sort would only assist 
us in coming to the Minister of Fisheries and Environ
ment to he! p to persuade him to allocate the resources to 
help us out. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke ? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr . Chairman, a ques
tion for Mr. Gillespie. I think I even addressed this same 
question to the Commissioner the other day and possi
bly you could answer it again. 

On April the 13th, this House passed a Motion regard
ing increased manpower and facilities for a game re
search project along the Dempster Highway and cer
tainly, with respect to the Porcupine caribou herd and 
other related problems. In that motion, we suggested 
that the Territorial Government look at other means of 
providing that increased manpower and facilities sug
gesting federal input. 

This morning in this motion being presented, the 
question arose that possibly the two are one and the 
same. It appears from your answer to the Honourable 
Member from Ogilvie, that in fact you have initiated 
some discussion with the federal government to provide 
further input into this kind of a study. My question is , as 
a result, are you going to be able to have the increased 
manpower and facilities to get this thing going this year, 
this summer? 

Mr. Gillespie: It appears at the moment, Mr. 
Chairman, that we will not, from the federal govern
ment having the additional assistance unless, somehow 
or other through the Alcan Pipeline Hearings, funds 
should become available to look into the prospect of a 
pipeline down that area and that would- perhaps- down 
the Dempster Highway, I mean, as a trunk line, that 
would provide us with some funds to hel pus look into the 
habits of the caribou herd in that region. 

That is rather a tenuous approach to getting funds for 
this purpose and I am not too hopeful that we can. As I 
say, we have approached the federal government, we 
have received a " no" answer for this year and it is 
perhaps worth a try again now that we have had this 
expression of view from this House. 

,Mr. Lengerke: Right. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Just a follow-up to that, specifically, 
what departments, Mr. Gillespie, did you go to in the 
federal government or did you just do this through the 
Department of Northern Affairs? 

Mr. Gillespie: Well, two departments, one is the De
partment of Environment, Fisheries and Environment 
and the other is Northern Affairs. I forgot to mention 
and I have just been reminded of the fact that we have 
also approached the Department of Indian and North
ern Affairs on their road side for funds to do more re
search into the Dempster Highway and its effects on the 
caribou herd and bring an answer right now from them. 
They've also been, the same group has been up to Old 
Crow and Old Crow has encouraged them to allocate 
funds for the same purpose. 

So, "!e haven't had a "no" answer from them yet, 
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we 've just had a ··no ·· answer from Environment. 

Mr. Lengerke: Okay. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs . Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. I wonder if I 
could ask how many years would be required to do a 
proper study of this type, considering the fact that you 
are going to have to look at a herd over a number of 
seasons and reproductive rate and all the other aspects . 
I assume , and, Mr. Chairman, would the witness try to 
describe to non-professionals s uch as I, how you meas
ure the impact of a proposed pipeline on living animals . 

Dr. Hoefs: As far as the first part of the question is 
concerned, it is generally considered that a study on a 
large animal , like a caribou, would take three to five 
years and particularly caribou, which are very unpre
dictable animals. If I may give you an example, we have 
been monitoring the harvest along the Dempster since I 
joined the Game Branch, which was in '72, for the past 
five years, and there were lots of caribou in the first 
year and then for three years, hardly any were har
vested and we already assumed that it was the Demps
ter who created a change of their migration routes and 
winter ranges to the west into Alaska , until this year 
when they showed up again . 

So you couldn' t base anything on three years' obser
vation and for that reason, we think we need a long term 
study. 

As far as the pipeline along the Dempster is con
cerned, that is relatively new to me. I didn't know about. 
that issue until recently, but I assume that there will be 
studies done, just like they have done studies for the 
northern pipeline routes and for the Alaska pipeline 
route. 

In general, I think that a pipeline is probably less 
harmful than a highway because once it's buried, it is , 
it's gone, there's no further traffic as we have it with a 
road. 

Hon. Mrs. Wbyard: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, to follow up that 
question of the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West, I think the phrasing should have been, it's not the 
pipeline because I also assume that the pipeline would 
be buried in most of the stretches of the highway, but 
what's the impact of building the pipeline? I mean 
there's masses of people, there's masses of machinery 
and trucks and everything that's going to frequent the 
highway. What possible impact could that have on the 
caribou herd? 

Dr. Hoefs: Mr. Chairman, if an impact study is 
made, one of the recommendations that can be expected 
from this study is how this construction will be faced to 
interfere least with the caribou. For instance in the 
southern part of the Dempster, there would be very 
little interference if the construction is done in the 
summer when they are in the North. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

() 

) 



Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman , I'd like to ask the wit
ness . in his professional opinion, whether there would be 
more damage done by a pipeline or by the highway 
which is now going through? 

Dr. Hoefs: Well , I pointed out already that it de
pends very much on how the construction of the pipeline 
is phased. It could be phased in a way that it has very 
little interference with the caribou and as far as the 
highway is concerned, again, it depends on how it is 
used. 

We know that the area bisected by the highway is very 
little used by caribou in summer and if most of the 
transportation along the highway is done in summer 
then there will be very little interference with the 

· caribou. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, then in his professional 
opinion, would the witness recommend that certain 
rules or regulations be set down at this point on the 
phasing in of the various uses of the highway as it is now, 
and as it will be when it's built. 

Dr. Hoefs: Mr. Chairman, that is one of the purposes 
of our study, to determine just that. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, maybe the ques
tion was asked alrP.ady when I wasn't in the House, but 
Shultz International recommended in his one week 
study on the Dempster Highway that there's going to be 
a whole lot of follow-up studies to be done and I would 
like to direct the question to Mr. Gillespie if I may, Mr. 
Chairman. Since this was DPW who is building the 
highway, it's a federal government project, and it was 
loaded onto the Territorial Government, shouldn't it be 
the responsibility of DPW to conduct these studies? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, DPW constructs 
these roads, or at least the roads in the North, on behalf 
of Indian Affairs and Northern Development, so the 
question really should concern the responsibilities of 
Indian Affairs and Northern Development, rather than 
DPW. . 

Indian Affairs and Northern Development has been 
approached, by us , for money and research assistance 
to accelerate the research in that area in this regard, 
and they have also been approached by the people of Old 
Crow. They have not yet come back with their answer. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, then I would say that 
part of the blame I have to put on the Territorial Gov
ernment administration, because it was me that 
brought in that report on Shultz International and I 
think if the people would go back in the Debates and 
Proceedings, the same request was made then and it 
was a year and a half ago. 

Mr. Chairman: Are there any further questions for 
the witness? 

Mr . Lang? 
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Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I'm just looking at 
the motion that is before us as it relates to the motion 
that has already passed this House. I would just like to 
possibly have Mr. Gillespie elaborate.a little furthe~ in 
relation to the- I believe you referred 1t to the Canad1an 
Wildlife Federation? 

There is still a possibility that they would be prepared 
to cooperate with us possibly this year, is that not cor
rect? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, the indications that 
they have given us is that they would not be prepared 
this year, because they lack funds , but they 're prepared 
to discuss helping us, assisting us in this project next 
year. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: In relation to the two motions once 
again, I'd like to perhaps, direct another 9uestion to Mr. 
Gillespie. In the first motion, we have directed the re
solution to the Game Branch, who is the authority and 
Game is a responsibility of this Government. In this 
particular motion that is being presented at the prese~t 
time, it is straight to a federal department and would 1t 
be possible for a federal department to go and do a study 
on their own without going through the Game Branch? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, it's a good question. 
We would hope not. We would much prefer to see, and 
this has been our thrust and our approach to both fed
eral departments, that any studies that are carr~ed out 
are carried out in cooperation with us and essentially at 
our direction to the extent that this is possible to do. 

Canadian Wildlife Service await an invitation from a 
territory or province before they undertake this kind of 
cooperative venture and do so on the terms requested by 
the jurisdiction and, in that instsance, I have no doubt 
that they would do it in consultation and in cooperation 
with us . As a matter of fact, this is exactly the same 
attitude that the officials in Indian and Northern Affairs 
have used in their discussions with us, that they would 
do it in conjunction with our Game Branch officials 
rather than doing it independently. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: But, Mr. Chairman, in relation to 
our status within Canada, and I don' t want to get into 
that, it is a possibility if a motion were sent to a federal 
department that they could quite conceivably, if they 
decide to do it and have consent of the Department of 
Indian Affairs and Northern Development, they could 
come in and do it with r eally, not requesting the direc
tion of our Game Branch. That is a possibility, is it not? 

Mr. Gillespie: It is a possibility. I think we could 
avert it ·though by getting in touch with those depart
ments before they moved in. I think they're becoming 
sensitized enough now to the Territorial position with 
regard to independentfederal activity in the Yukon that 
they wouldn't do that, but certainly we would take steps 
to ensure tha t they did not . 

Mr. Chairman, they need a permit from us before 
they' re allowed to go in. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 



Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Well , Mr. Chairman, I had felt 
that this motion was redundant in view of the fact that 
this government has already instituted such a study, 
has already sought financial support from at least two 
other federal departments for such a study and would 
certainly be here to coordinate any such studies . How
ever, if the Member responsible feels that there will be 
any impact from this House in another prod in the same 
direction, I have no problem. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, there is another resol
ution that was passed in this House, that virtually says 
the same thing as this motion and , really, by all pro
cedural laws of this House, this motion probably should 
never have been allowed. So, what we're doing is just 
repeating again what the other motion very specifically 
and actually says in a much better manner than this 
additional motion. I would suggest that if the Member 
from Ogilvie is convinced, in her own mind, that the 
other motion does take care of it that she would consider 
just withdrawing her motion if she feels sure that the 
other one does fill the requirements that she wants fil
led. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I thought at this point 
we were actually asking questions of a witness, not dis
cussing this motion, but if we want to go ahead on that 
~~~. . 

I still don't see that-- it may be redundant in some of 
the meat of the motion but the purpose of it is to direct 
the opinion of the House to the Honourable Romeo LeB
lanc , which the other motion simply states " It is the 
opinion of this Assembly that the Yukon Government 
provide or make arrangements for manpower and 
facilities required to complete the game research pro
ject." 

That was the Game Branch research project and 
study that's being done. It really has no concern with 
federal studies and , as the witness has stated, the more 
the better. You know, I don't see why we have to get into 
this hassle because the more motions for the - the more 
opinions that come from this House in support of some 
kind of environmental impact study on the Dempster, 
the better. 

If you want to defeat the motion on that, I think that's 
your prerogative, but, Mr. Chairman, I feel that it is not 
redundant, that one is directing to the Game Branch and 
one is directing to the Federal Minister of Fisheries and 
Environment, quite a different aspect. 

Mrs. Watson: Point of order, Mr. Chairman, both of 
them are directed to the administration both resolu
tions. The resolution we are discussing n~w is directed 
to the administration, not to the Minister. 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, it says that the ad
ministration should request of the Honourable LeBlanc 
that he look into the possibility of immediate environ
mental impact studies. That's quite different from ask
ing the Yukon Game Branch to provide or make ar
rangements for manpower and facilities required to . . 
complete their own game research project. -

Mr. Chairman: Are there any further questions for 
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the witness? 
Mr. Gillespie? 

Mr. Gillespie: May I make a remark? Picking up a 
point brought up by Mr. Lang earlier on, if this motion is 
going to be passed , I think it would be useful to amend it 
slightly to indicate that any such study should be done in 
cooperation with the Territorial Government, and that 
could be readily injected in the centre of the mot·ion. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you Dr. Hoefs for your pres-
ence and your expert professional opinions. 

Are you ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Ms. Millard ; 
THAT it is the opinion of this House that the administ-

ration should request the Honourable Romeo LeBlanc, 
Minister of Fisheries and Environment, to look into the 
possibility of immediate environmental impact studies 
on the building of the Dempster Highway, particularly 
concerning impact on the Dempster caribou herd. 

All those in favour ? 
Contrary? 
The motion is defeated. 

JrMotion defeated ) 

Mr. Chairman: We' ll carry on with the Green Paper 
on Bid Differentials and for this purpose we have ap
pearing as witnesses, Mr. AlKapty, and Mr. Clive Boyd , 
members of the Task Force on Northern Business De
velopment. 

Gentlemen, if you would like to come down to the 
witness chair. 

Gentlemen, are there any comments that you would 
like to make regarding the Green Paper before we start 
firing questions? 

Mr. Kapty: I suppose I could sum up in about fifty 
words here, or less, the basic philosophy or principle 
that is embodied in all of the some 42 recommendations 
of the Task Force, is a direction - a suggestion for the 
direction of government spending so as to stimulate and 
create northern economy. 

The suggestion is that northern companies owned by 
northern residents will result in profits remaining in the 
north and should consequently lead to greater economic 
development by encouragmg the reinvestment of these 
profits in the North. 

That is my summation. 

Mr. Chairman: It was in fifty words, or less. Con
gratulations . 

( Laughter) 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll ask a 
question of the witnesses. 

As members of the Task Force for the Bid Differen
tials for northern enterprises and matters concerning 
n~rthern contracts, I was going to ask you if you, cer
tamly as members of that Task Force, have monitored 

) 

) 
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what has been going on lately with respect to federal 
contracts . Ha ve in fact there been an increase in the 
awarding of contracts to northern contractors since the 
implementation of the policy, with respect to the federal 
government? 

Mr. Boyd: I don 't know that there 's been an in
crease. I think the status quo is probably being main
tained . Generally speaking, there has been a down turn 
in the amount of contracts. 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, so it's a little hard to -

Mr. Boyd: It's a little hard to evaluate this early. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Lengerke ? 

Mr. Lengerke: I'll just ask the question then of the 
witnesses. Would you like to see the same kind of policy 
implemented in Yukon as far as Territorial G<>vern-. 
ment contracts are concerned? 

Mr. Boyd: Yes, definitely. 

Mr. Kapty: Perhaps one comment that I didn't add 
that should have followed my initial comments, the 
spending of Government funds, be it government, or 
funds spent by the private corporations or individuals, 
private companies or individuals, in the best studies of 
the Task Force seem to reveal a multiplier effect, 
economic multiplier effect, of some seven times so that 
the comments that I made earlier naturally follow that 
$100,000.00 contract awarded to a northern company 
would create $700,000.00 amount of business. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Just in follow up to that, Mr. Chair
man, the Green Paper that we were given and I don't 
know if the witnesses have had an opportunity to see it, 
but on the back of it there was an attached opinion and it 
said, "preferential treatment for northern contractors" 
and then it brought out some of the negative aspects, 
like it said it invited abuses and certainly as people in 
private enterprise, in business , I'm sure that that kind 
of comment would mean something to you and I'd like to 
get either one of your reactions to that, if in fact you, as 
members of the business community, feel that this 
would invite abuses. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 

Mr. Boyd: Abuses are certainly possible. Probably 
more than possible, they are going to become common. 
I don't know of anything you can put into the English 
language and put on print that somebody can't circum
vent or at least endeavor to circumvent. 

Needless to say, the southern contractor, if that's a 
good definition, is going to take a look at his situation, 
see what he can do to qualify, take the least action 
possible to qualify and hopefully qualify, or at least 
endeavor to qualify. . 

If he has to skirt around the law in some minor ways, 
I'm quite sure he'll endeavor to do that. But like I say, I 
don't know of any way of putting the English language 
down that somebody can't figure out a way of circum-
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venting it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty? 

Mr. Kapty: I might just follow on by saying that that 
perhaps has gone on , is going on and will go on. lt's just 
like Clive has said. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman: Mrs . Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, of the witnesses, this 
Green Paper also is quite critical. It takes a negative 
attitude towards preferential treatment for northern 
contractors and yet the Green Paper that we had from 
the Government just alludes very briefly to the fact that 
Provincial Governments are in fact assisting through 
various means, business establishments or firms, 
based in the Province . How do the Provinces or other 
jurisdictions go about providing special or preferential 
treatment to their firms ? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 

Mr. Boyd: The Province of Quebec is probably the 
most notorious. They just specifically state you shall be 
a member or a resident contractor in the Province of 
Quebec or you shall not bid on Quebec-type work. The 
other Provinces, they use a method, contractors' sales 
tax. We in the Territories or anywhere else in Canada do 
not pay Provincial Sales Taxes. If we were to bid into 
any of the Provinces that have sales tax, we would have . 
to pay the sales tax on all of the equipment and monies 
and so on expended into that area. 

In the case of British Columbia, they have a seven per 
cent bid differential right now, just through the applica
tion of their sales tax. Most of them are doing it and 
generally speaking, it's either hidden or it's disguised. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman , just to extend that 
a little further, I believe it is the practice in some Pro
vinces, including Ontario, if Mr. Boyd could correct me, 
to require a residency clause before a business licence is 
issued even, so tbat no one from outside the Province 
can establish themselves in that business unless they do 
it through a local firm or wait a certain number of 
months prior to opening a new one. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if we 
could have an opinion on that kind of approach, gener
ally, instead of just bids on contracts. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 

Mr. Boyd: An opinion on that kind of approach, I was 
reading an article here a little while ago, Quebec had 
this type of qualification. There was a statement made 
that Ontario, or the legislation is nothing more than a 
licensing mechanism for Ontario contractors. In other 
words, they set up a phoney residency, an occupancy, 
they acquire their licence, they may even use a Quebec 



firm to front for them and so on and so forth . 
Like I say , it is happening throughout Canada in all 

jurisdictions, so to speak, in one form or another and I 
think it only viable that the Yukon have the same pro
tective mechanisms for the businessman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard ? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I don' t have the information 
which would make it simpler for me to respond to this 
kind of paper, and that is a breakdown of the number of 
contracts awarded, for example, in the last five to ten 
years. The percentage awarded to contractors from 
outside the Yukon and the percentage awarded to loc
als, but perhaps we have that information here. 

Mr. Gillespie: We don'thave it Mr. Chairman, I'm not 
sure whether the Task Force gained access to that kind 
of information in the course of preparing their recom
mendations or not. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: To follow up on that, Mr. Chairman 
that was going to be my question and I see here in th~ 
paper that was provided us , it says, "In reviewing con
tracts entered into by the Government of Yukon for 
1975-76, we have found that total contract dollars 
awarded to Outside firms, now that's£xcluding those 
contracts on which no local bids were received~ was 29 
per cent. So you must have had some statistics and I'll 
say this to Mr. Gillespie, in order to compile that. My 
question to the witnesses would be then, and maybe it's 
a little hard for them to reply, would this not be a fairly 
healthy figure of Outside participation, 29 percent? 

I am concerned, as all of us here are concerned with 
implementing this kind of bid differential system in 
Yukon, and when we see that this is the kind of partici
pation, maybe it's really not too bad. Maybe Yukon 
firms are vying quite well . I don't know. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty? 

Mr. ~apty: I have a question on the Green Paper, of 
the w~1ters of t~e Green Paper. Excluding, to quote 
from It, " excludmg those contracts on which no local 
bids w~re received'' , immediately raises the question in 
my mmd, what was the total amount of spending and 
what is the .dollar figure for that exclusion? Perhaps the 
29 per cent IS now suddenly a 40 per cent or more figure. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie. 

Mr. Gillespie: The point here, Mr. Chairman, is that 
there were no local firms that chose to bid on these and 
therefore, if they were a bid differential , they wouldn't 
have affected the situation at all as I understand it and 
therefore the relevant figure is just how many contracts 
were let outside where there was a Yukon firm that 
wished to ~id and did not get it and that's the figure, 29 
per cent, mdollar terms. I can't tell you in terms of 
numbers of contracts. It could be developed, but I don' t 
have that information, it has not been compiled . 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 
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Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, that's leading us 
into the chicken and egg situation. You may have firms 
here that would be able to bid on such contracts if they 
know they were going to be receiving them and they 
would then inves t capital into the kind of equipment 
required to bid and you go round on that one forever. It's 
the same as my perennial argument about this govern
ment giving printing contracts locally and the 
government's argument that the printers here don 't 
have the kind of equipment. All right, you know, the 
same situation, Mr. Chairman. 

But I think the point I'm trying to get at here is how 
many local contractors require such an incentive in 
order to remain viable in their business here? Just to 
receive some reaction from the witnesses, Mr. Chair
man, I'm going to put it this way, has the day when you 
got out and hustled to get a contract and worked your 
butt off to make the bucks, been replaced by an ease
ment in this kind of preferential treatment? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd. 

Mr. Boyd: No, Mrs. Whyard, it has not. At least it has 
not for the major contractors and I think when we're 
talking about a bid differential , I think we're talking 
about minors. I think we're talking about lesser firms 
and much younger firms. Firms, who to the credit of the 
Yukon, are trying to become established in the business 
and who can and will become viable if they're given 
some primary assistance. 

In earlier conversations with my colleague here, Mr. 
Kapty, I stated that in my lifetime in the industry, I 
don't think there are two or three bids in a kind of 
lifetime in the industry, where it would have made a 
difference in my endeavours or in the companies I 
worked for in their endeavours, but with the small per
son , if we just cannot deal with the smaller, the contrac
tor in Whitehorse, we have to consider the contractor in 
Watson Lake, we have to consider the contractor in 
Dawson, Inuvik and, you know, the whole of the north
ern span is what we're talking about. These are raw 
communities , they're almost frontier type com
munities, they're endeavouring to become viable. They 
don' t have on-going work, they don' t have the forces to 
retain staffs year round and maintain premises and so 
on, and if they are ever going to become viable, they're 
going to need some initial help. 

The recommendation that we're discussing here, 
made by Mr. Buchan;an, was on a three year experi
mental basis only. It was to try it to see if it would help 
them. If it does help them then perhaps it's worth 
further consideration, but initially it's on a three year 
experimental basis to see if it will have an effect on the 
northern entrepreneur. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, yes, justto follow upon 
Mr. Boyd's comments. He mentioned primary assis
tance to smaller contractors and I think I probably 
would concur that that is the case, but I also would like 
to know if the task force , and I'm sure they did, I'd like to 
hear_ their reactions now, considered other things like, 
possibly, a lesser system of bonding and tendering pro
cedures that we so often hear is the problem with re
spect to the smaller contractors, rather than the bid 
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differentials, because I've heard them say that, you 
know, it doesn' t matter. as long as we can get our bid in , 
we don't care if there 's a bid differential , but the thing is 
that we can' t even put together a bid in the first in
stance. And I'm sure that in the task force 's work, you 
must have discovered something there and is tha t a 
valid point or did you consider it? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd. 

Mr. Boyd: Yes, Mr. Lengerke, we certainly did. Ther 
are forty-two recommendations, there are some similar 
number in the task force recommendations and they do 
not, of course, includ~ the ones that might have been 
rejected. Of course, one of the ones that was rejected 
was a reduction in income tax for corporations and resi
dents and non-entrepreneurs, if you like. 

We did take a very long and serious look at the bond
ing and the insurance qualifications and so on and that is 
a very difficult problem. The bond is the guarantee that 
the client has that the work will be done according to the 
specification and within the price quoted and that is the 
only guarantee it has. If you remove it or reduce it, 
you're actually removing or reducing the guarantee. 

If the Government would subsidize the bonding and 
make it possible for small independent contractors to 
get bonding through the Government, they would actu
ally be defeating their own purpose, because they in that 
case are the client and they'd be undercutting their own 
guarantees. 

It's a problem throughout all of Canada ; it's a particu
lar problem in the North and in the Task Force we did 
not come up with a solution to the bonding problem. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have a question 
for the witnesses on two points actually. In this day and 
age of subsidiaries, wouldn't it be a possibility now of a 
larger construction company, I am thinking particu
larly of construction now, to create a subsidiary in the 
Yukon strictly for the purpose to get a ten per cent gain 
in the bid differential? 

The other question I [:ave is on a local level. It was 
really more to the heart of the population of the Yukon, 
especially the small contractors as was mentioned in 
Watson Lake, Teslin, Dawson City or Haines Junction, 
wherever they may be, the cost of living in those areas is 
much higher than the cost of operating in those areas; 
roughly, to speak for Dawson, it is about eighteen per 
cent higher than Whitehorse. Shouldn't there be a bid 
differential also considered on the local level? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty? 

Mr. Kapty: Answering the first point, Fred, the 
store front or mail box subsidiary would exist only if the 
contractor wished to break the law and swear a declara
tion that is not correct, is not true. This is what Mr. Boyd 
alluded to earlier, that people perhaps have made those 
improprieties in the past and may continue going about 
doing them. 

The question of a bid differential for the centres out
side of Whitehorse perhaps is answered to some degree 
in the other resolutions of the Task Force. Just to cite 
one, for instance, there is a resolution suggesting that 
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Public Works , capital works, be advertised principally 
in the area in which that works is taking place if it's 
below a certain value. If you're going to build a 
$50,000.00 project in Dawson City and the entrepreneurs 
of Dawson City have the capability of meeting that, then 
the principle point for invitation of tenders for that Pub
lic Works should be Dawson City ; secondly, other points 
in the Yukon. 

So with the hardships of a contractor or a supplier of 
services in the outlying area he would in fact be given 
the advantage. He would have the plans made available 
to him in his base of operations, not at Whitehorse. I 
might point out, there are , of the 42 recommendations, 
all intertwine to some degree with this bid preferential 
recommendation that is the subject of the Green Paper 
in the same manner in which I've just replied to that 
question. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: I find it very interesting. I would like to 
thank the witness for the answer. 

I would like to ask Mr. Administrator, if I may ask, 
Mr. Chairman, if those 42 recommendations are any- . 
where showing, especially the concern on the small con
tractors compared to Whitehorse in the outlying areas? 

Mr. Gillespie: I would have to refer to my depart- · 
ment to get the precise answer to that. I'm not sure just 
where that recommendation stands. It is a continuing 
exercise at the Federal level to examine the various 
recommendations and we're beginning, in dribs and 
drabs, to get answers with regard to their position. 

We have not had answers to all of them, and I'm just 
not acquainted with the answer to that particular one, 
I'm afraid. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, I'm particularly refer
ring to Territorial Government contracts on a smaller 
scale. Is the Territorial Government doing anything to 
help the small contractors in the outlying areas, outside 
of Whitehorse? 

Mr. Gilles pie: The first question that the Territorial 
Government chose to address is this one, the question of 
bid differentials. That's the one that affects Yukon bus
iness generally. If we move on this, it would be a logical 
step then to address the question about regional distinc
tions and preferential treatments. I don't believe that 
we, or at least we don' t have any overt, laid down policy 
giving preferential treatment to outlying communities 
or to the communities in which the work is to be under
taken . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I'm not actually one of those in 
the House who are turning cartwheels for celebration 
and joy over giving preferential treatment for northern 
contractors.l've always felt and I know the situation of 
the two firms that the witnesses are involved with and, 
in my career as a businessman in the companies I was 
involved in, I always felt that it was rather a matter of 
pride that being innovative and efficient and knowing 



the local situation and taking advantage of it that we 
could meet with the be:;;t in Canada and compete with 
them and come out making a few bucks for our com
pany. I always thought this was kind of a matter of 
pride. We didn't need to have any of these northern 
preferential treatments to contractors. 

I just have to say that any businessman in Yukon who 
has run a company on innov&tive ideas, who has been 
efficient, who has been willing to work hard and who has 
known the local situations and studied it and applied his 
knowledge of that local situation to it, I think they've all 
made a buck. I think they've all made a pretty good one 
and they can stand up and say, you know, we didn' t have 
to have any preferential treatment. We could compete 
against anybody in Canada and we could still come up 
for our shareholders and come up for our personal pride 
and some money ahead in the pocketbook, too. 

I don't know, I worry about these types of things. I'll 
be candid about it, I think that we may have an overall 
inferiority complex in Northern Canada that I don't 
think we need. I think we can meet, compete and stand 
up with the best in anybody. I know the firms that the, as 
I say, the witnesses are involved in, how well they've 
done because of their abilities to do these types of 
things. I'm just not sure and I'm toni of two minds that 
this is really the way to go and I 'd like comments from 
the witnesses on these ideas. 

I'd rather think that these are ad hoc measures , thatif 
we had a firm economic development policy of where 
the North was going perhaps we wouldn't have to fool 
around with ad hoc measures like these and worrying 
about little contractors in local areas throughout the 
North. I am of two minds, I don't mind admitting it, on 
this preferential treatment for northern contractors. I 
think that if the people are good, if they are efficient, 
that they know their business, if they 're willing to use 
their northern experience, willing to use the innovative 
ideas, I know you have them, and we have, that we're 
going to make out all right in Northern Canada and, by 
God, I'd like to be able to stand up to the giants and say 
we did it because we were smart enough and intelligent 
enough to take advantage of the situation, the local situ
ation. We didn't need any preferential help from any
one. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd. 

Mr. Boyd: I must reply to that. Mr. Kapty and my
self and the firms we represent were here, and have 
been for quite some time , and the recommendation at 
this point has not been applicable to us. It may and it 
may not, but we on the Task Force were charged with 
helping those who were less fortunate than the com
panies we represent. There are a lot of small business
men. We met these businessmen throughout the North, 
in all communities, and this was the hue and cry of all of 
them. They had to have some kind of advantage and, I 
agree with you, Mr. McKinnon, I would like to see 
policies that give us a growth rate and the viable 
businessman will make it work and he will succeed. 

We don' t always have those things and, as I say, we 're 
charged with helping those that were less fortunate and 
particularly in the other Territories which don't have 
the advantage at this time that the Yukon has. These 
recommendations, this particular recommendation, 
came from far and wide. Every community we visited 
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asked for this type of assistance. n 
I think we only visited three communities in the 

Yukon and again the hue and cry for preferential treat
ment was raised and, you know , I point out that it's not 
the firms that we represent that we're trying to help 
with this type of recommendation. Believe me, that's 
the last thing we need. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty. 

Mr. Kapty: I'd like to add just a few words to that. 
The Green Paper makes reference there to the briefs 
wl".ich the Task Force received from Yukon and it goes 
on to say that no specific reference is made by Yukon 
companies to this subject. 

In the meetings that the Task Force held in the Yukon, 
minutes were taken, not official minutes , no recordings 
were made, of the deliberations of our public meetings . 
The participants in the meetings were people, they 're 
small businessmen and large businessmen and indi
viduals, that came out and spoke their mind on their 
various problems. 

It was interesting to note, from our first meeting in 
Watson Lake to our last meeting in Rankin Inlet, the 
very same basic principles came out. There were ab?ut 
five or six basic principles came out and the very first 
meeting identified them, and in each six meetings or 
each nine meetings, pardon me, as if by orchestration, 
echoed each one of these principles. 

Just to give you an example of the chicken and egg 
game that Flo referred to here a little earlier, the skidoo 
dealer in Frobisher Bay could not do a nickel 's worth of ) 
business with the Federal Government of the Govern-
ment of the Northwest Territories simply because all of ( 
the purchasing of spare parts and new skidoos was 
made in Montreal, shipped in on a sea-lift, and that was 
it. If all of the wrong spare parts arrived, well, they'd 
just have to get in another stock of spare parts by air or 
whichever way they did it. 

Whereas, here was this little individual struggling, he 
was doing this as a night-owl or doing it on the side, he 
was an employee I believe of one of the governments but 
this was his own private business. There was the egg of 
entrepreneurship. There was the very bud of entrep
reneurship. 

The same thing applies to communities like Mayo. 
Why don't we have a furnace repairman in Mayo? Try 
to get your furnace repaired in Mayo or Teslin. Well , at 
least you have a choice in Whitehorse, but in any case, 
there is an example of where the preference, not just of 
the five or ten per cent, but by the allocation, the spend
ing of government funds best directed so that, in reply
ing again in these comments to a question that Walt 
raised a little earlier, the 29 per cent figure becomes 
virtually a zero figure if Yukon can support the industry 
of supply and services, contractors, whatever, to meet 
the demands of the business. 

As free enterprisers, we found it very interesting to sit 
on the Task Force and follow the comments of people 
from Yukon to Northwest Territories and it was very 
challenging and stimulating to receive all of that 
straightforward, stand up and we'll fight our own bat
tles type of approach that Ken made here. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? ( ) 



Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes, there was a point that I wanted 
to raise, Mr. Chairman ; it's in relation to the Task 
Force report itself. There were so many recommenda
tions that were, in my view, really not applicable to the 
Yukon but to the Northwest Territories, and I think this 
is one of the problems that you get into when you try to 
do a northern global study when you have to take differ
ent working conditions in a different region of Canada 
and try to apply it at the same time to, in our particular 
case, the Yukon. 

I have my misgivings in relation to this as well , like 
my colleague Mr. McKinnon, because at the municipal 
level and this kind of thing there 's a lot of money raised 
through the tax dollar in relation to contracts being let 
and this kind of thing , but it could quite conceivably be a 
-- might be a $50,000.00 contract could possibly cost 
$55,000.00 and that $5,000.00 might have to be raised at 
the municipal level and that 's from the taxpayer. So, it 
rebounds right throughout the system, it just doesn' t 
stay at one level. 

It would be fine if it was all from one Government 
source, say the Federal Government; this is not the 
case when you start getting into smaller contracts and 
this kind of thing. I'd just like to hear what the com
ments are of the witnesses in relation to this because I 
think this is a danger because a ll the taxpayers are 
paying at least a certain percentage in most cases . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty? 

Mr. Kapty: One of the recommendations calls for 
the Federal Government, the Treasury Board, to study 
the socio-economic factor as it pertains to this particu
lar Green Paper or the Resolution that's in the Green 
Paper and the other recommendations that deal with 
northern preference or northern preferential treat
ment. 

The comment that I made earlier of the multiplier 
effect of business, that $50,000.00 contract that you cite, 
would be the equivalent of a $500,000.00 contract if the 
multiplier effect is ten of course, $350,000.00 if it 's seven 
per cent, as our information indicated to us on the Task 
Force, so that the economic benefit to Whitehorse, be it 
that municipality that's raising those funds , would be 
substantially greater than the extra expenditure re
quired to give this preferential treatment. 

It was interesting to note that, in our meeting in In
uvik , the Municipality of Inuvik has a seven per cent 
preferential bylaw for Inuvik businessmen on all 
municipal service and public works contracts. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang ? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Well , once again, Mr. Chairman , 
you can use the multiplier effect and all this kind of 
thing, but in the final analysis some body's paying for it. 
I'd just like to ask the Administrator, if I could, in rela
tion to last year , I believe there was some statistics 
worked out somewhere along the line in relation to how 
this particular policy would have applied to last year . 
It's my understanding that possibly it wouldn' t have 
affected any contracts of the Y.T.G. Is this a fair state
ment? 

Mr. Gillespie: I wish I could recall myself. I do re
call something along those lines; I wasn't responsible 
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for this portfolio at that time and so didn't do the re
search involved, but I think the Member is correct, that 
last year it would not have affected any contract that we 
are aware of, that was let by the Territorial Govern
ment. But I'm not sure on that. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman , I would like to as k 
a question of the two witnesses here, away from the 
Green Paper. 

There's other businesses in the Territory who still 
have to make an existence who are not going to get any 
preferential treatment because they are not bidding on 
any contract or anything like Government contracts , 
and so on. 

Has the Task Force come up with any thoughts on 
businesses like this and what preferential treatment 
those businesses could be helped under , or with? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd. 

Mr. Boyd: We were appointed by the Minister of 
Indian Affairs, at that time Judd Buchanan, and he 
could only speak for his department, so to speak. He 
could try and influence the rest of the government areas 
but he could speak at that time for his Department, and 
in the recommendations we recommended that s upply 
contracts, which is normally the merchant selling and 
supplying to the government, that they be extended pre
ferentially . Mr. Buchanan accepted that philosophy and 
a preferential was implemented or made available to 
him. 

They will tender , in some instances, they will tender 
only in the area in which the material is going to be used 
and they will consider all tenders to be F.O.B. the site or 
F .O.B. the area in which they 're going to be used. In 
other words, you can' t sell a car and quite it F.O.B. 
Edmonton when it's actually going to be used in Inuvik. 
It must be quoted F.O.B. Inuvik. In that way, the mer
chants are getting, through the Department of Supply 
and Service and various other agencies, they are get
ting a better deal than they had before. Perhaps it s till 
leaves something to be desired , but the trend is estab
lished to make some differential for the businessman 
other than a contract bidder. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I just have two 
more questions. One of them I have to phrase very care
fully because I'm not too sure of my ground here. One of 
the problems that's been brought to my attention from 
time to time by local people is the difficulties which 
arise from certain organized groups of labour regard
ing contract work in the North. The difficulties, as 
they 've been described to me of a local person having to 
compete with Outside labour, etcetera, etcetera, for 
jobs locally, on local contracts . If this bid preferential 
meant that Northerners then had the majority of con
tracts at a ll times here in the North, am I oversimplify
ing to say that this would ease that particular problem 
greatly? 

Mr. Boyd: I think it would ease it substantially, yes . 
Normally, that worker that you referred to , the local 



worker, the person that resides in the North, he wouldn't 
have to compete with anybody. He would have the first 
option of employment. You know, that isn't to say that a 
more efficient person can't be hired over a less efficient 
person, but the Northern worker will have first refusal 
on any job that a Northern contractor has out. That isn't 
a law or anything, it just happens as a matter of course. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And 
the other is a rather general question. I was wondering 
if we could be told what stage most of the other recom
mendations are at? This is the first that this Govern
ment has addressed itself to and I gather it's a three 
year trial period. Just, if I could throw in another small 
one here, Mr. Chairman, am I to understand from Mr. 
Kapty's remarks, that at the end of that three year 
period there'll be a social-economic impact study, be
cause if so we're going to be waiting awhile. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty. 

Mr. Kapty: Tile recommendation regarding the 
socio-economic study was not tied to the three year 

. · · per.iod. It wa~; ~t.'s supposedly underway right now. The 
answer to the recommendation by the, by Ottawa was. 
simply that Treasury Board, ill its normal deliberations 
regarding other business activities in Canada, has, as 
an on-going_concern and consideration, the study of the 
~ocio-economic factor for all government spending in 
all of Canada. So, I am saying that perhaps that resolu
tion isn't goin·g to bring forward any further response. 

We asked for a specific socio-economic study pertain
ing to government spending in the North, not the buying 
of typewriters in Western Canada or the building of 
typewriters in Western Canada, which I believe has 
recently been the subject of a recommendation of 
Treasury Board. 

To carry on then, I suppose the point of the socio
economic study, really, then has to take into account the 
effect of all of the recommendations and a number of the 
other recommendations, without beginning to report 
here , Flo, on the progress report which we as task force 
members have received. On February lOth and Feb
ruary 11th, of this year, we received, or there were 
letters issued, covering these progress reports. The 
first progress report, as I say, was issued on February 
10, and then progress report number two seemed to 
follow irpmediately one day later after a time lapse of 
several months, or almost a year. The progress report 
deals with each of the recommendations, some of which 
I believe have slowly taken place, The small business 
loan fund of the Yukon was expanded, the loan limit 
increased, the amortization period increased, the use 
for the funds diversified. Recommendations like that 
have gone· forward and are in place. 

Recommendations that are closer to the very heart of 
the philisophy of bid preferential have been slower or 
have not been put into place. The recommendation that 

""- I cite, for instance, regarding making the work, the 
public work available to the community in which the 
work is to take place first to enable those citizens, or 
those businessmen, those workers, to participate in that 
work, receive the greatest benefit of it, has, to my know
ledge, not gone forward. 

As I see it, that is very applicable to Yukon as well as 
Northwest Territories' consideration. 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Mr.Chairman, I won' t ask many ques
tions of these, I'm more or less in agreement. I've been 
listening very carefully. 

The Minister of Education was a little worried about 
the problem of it costing us possibly a little more money 
and I appreciate the answer from the witnesses, but I 
would like to take that a little further and clarify to 
myself and maybe some Members, if the witnesses 
could say that in the face of a contract of say $100,u00.00 
where there was a five or ten per cent differential-I'll 
put it this way, the contractors in the Yukon Territory, 
and we know the money will be spent in the Yukon 
Territory very likely, on the other hand, the contractor 
comes from Outside, he is an Outside contractor and the 
work will be done in the Yukon Territory, it will be paid 
for here, to that extent, but we'll always remember that 
a contractor, and especially a large contractor should 
be making some money. That money, in my opinion is 
going to leave the Territory possibly, and I'm wonder
ing if the witnesses feel the balance, what it \VOuld be. 
Would it be better to spend $5,000.00 here or would it be 
better to have that 5 or $10,000.00 go back Outside to the 
contractor from Outside. 

The other question which I'm thinkmg otis, and it's 
not really a question, but I'm thinking of income tax 
purposes, and a large contractor that files his income 
tax in Edmonton, not in the Yukon Territory, I don'~ 
think and I might be wrong, I'd like to clarify this with 
somebody, the witnesses or somebody, if I'm wrong, 
that I think that their income tax is filed where they 
come from and in the event that he did make a lot of 
money, that income tax now would go straight to the 
Federal Government and of course we will steal what 
we can or hopefully beg, I should say, for what we can 
get back. Someday possibly it may be paid in the Yukon 
Territory and we may have a clear picutre of this. That 
is just another way I think, possibly we may come up 
with a much better system here and we will end up with 
more money. However, the first question is the one I 
would like to nave really answered. 

Mr. Boyd: Could you rephrase the first question? 

Mr. Fleming: How do you feel, do you feel that we 
would be better off to have it cost us , let's say a 
$50,000.00 contract because that is what the Minister 
actually-a $50,000.00 contract is going to cost us say 
$5,000.00 mote to have a contractor in the Yukon do it 
here. A contractor from Outside comes in here and does 
the same job, we know he's got to go home with ten per 
cent or so, of profit somewhere, so it's not going to be 
spent in the Yukon Territory. It's going to leave the 
Territory. 

Now which would you like to have best. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 

Mr. Boyd: Well then, my answer would be obvious. I 
would like to see the $55,000.00 spent, rather than the 
$50,000.00. 

AI mentioned the socio-economic spin-off and the 
seven to one ratio , I don't think it will cost you anything, 
because the money will circulate, taxes will be collected 
that many more times, in the circulation of the dollar, 
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but I suggest to you that if you award the contract for 
$50.000.00, the Outside contractor will steal the other 
$5,000.00 off you anyhow in shoddy workmanship and he 
won't be here to do you warranty, and he won' t be here 
to repair what fails after he leaves and so on. so you ' ll 
spend it in any event. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Kapty? 

Mr. Kapty: Could I follow up then on the comment 
Bob has made regarding income tax? 

The Task Force addressed itself to both individual 
and corporate income tax ; made the recommendation 
that there be a lower individual tax and a lower corpo
rate tax for small business, or small entrepreneurs, 
small businessmen. This was rejected outright on the 
principle that income tax is universal and all Cana
dians, all business enterprises pay the same level of tax . 
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Mr. Boyd: I'm not going to walk into that one. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. the reason I 
raised it really, quite seriously, is that we have heard 
the word pipeline raised and this is one of the major 
tllings that's going to clobber us. These people will be 
coming in, if we have such a construction project. 
They'll be making a very high hourly rates and taking it 
all away with them. 

Mr. Kapty: Well , the answer that I could give to that. -
Flo, is very simply the spin-off. the multiplier effect, the 
socio-economic benefit of spending government funds 
with Northern firms would supposedly manifest itself in 
employees of those firms , as Clive has said earlier. of 
being principally Northerners or Northern residents . 

The problem that we were presented with is even 
more, very substantially greater . There are thousands 
of employees of oil companies, plane loads that take off 
from Edmonton International Airport and fly directly to 
a rig site somewhere on the Arctic Islands. A hundred 
people at a time and they take their paycheques with 
them to Leduc or wherever they live at and file their 
income tax on December 31st with a Leduc address. 

The principle though perhaps does have some consid
erations for Government of Yukon to consider in the 
future . The Province of Alberta, as an example, to in
vite the build up of industry in Alberta, is making that 
very same type of tax relief for Albertans and for AI- -.. 
berta based enterprises , not just corporations to invite -...... 
business to establish and employ people and employ 
assets in Alberta. 

That's a very unusual example and certainly doesn 't 
' apply to the Yukon, but the principle of bid preferential 

awarding the contract for the decking of Robert Camp
bell Bridge for some $700,000.00 to a Yukon firm would 
have been equivalent of some five million dollars, the 
equivalent of five million dollars worth of business in 
the Yukon and if half of that five million were paid in 
wages, or a quarter of that had been paid in wages , you 
can readily see the amount of income tax that would 
have been collected. 

As I say; I mal5:e this as a comment, perhaps it's a 
future consideration .. lshould point out that in the time 
frame in which the Task Force sat, received briefs, held 
its public meetings, the consideration of an Alcan 
Pipeline wasn't in any of our dreams, let alone any of 
o.ur considerations and that was less than two years ago. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd. 

Mr. Boyd: I would like to correct my previous · re
mark. Somehow you 'll have to delete the word that he'll 
steal it from you, he's going to get it from you some 
other way. It would cost you that much anyway. 

( Laughter) 

Mr. Boyd: --but delete that " steal ", would you? 

' Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard . 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, if you don' t mind 
my belabouring this point, it happens to be one of my 
favourites. I've made one or two abortive attempts in 
this Government to nail down some of the income tax 
that seasonal workers come and go and take away with 
them. I've been shot down before so I might as well be 
shot down again, Mr. Chairman, but a one point I ut
tered the dirty words ''work tax'' , which caused a great 
hue and cry, but the proposal I though was fairly simple 
and that was that employers deducted this and that at 
the end of the year returned it to Yukoners and the 
people who has left the country didn't get it back . There 
seems to be no way to arrange it through Ottawa and I 
thought we might· as well try arranging it through our 
own resources, but, Mr. Chairman, there is no way that 
we can get our hands on income tax from people who 
earn a lot of money in this country and took it away with 
them and then filed elsewhere in Canada.Mr. Chair
man, I'm open to any suggestions, but perhaps the wit
nesses have some ideas on that subject . 

I really haven't answered your question, though, as to 
how you pin down more and more of those employees to 
show on their tax returns right about now, 27th of April, 
that their residence was, in fact, Whitehorse, on De
cember 31st. What I'm saying, really, the majority, at 
least 50 per cent, they have to to qualify as a Northern 
firm, at least 50 per cent of their employees have to be a 
resident of the North. So atleast, as one of the conditions 
of the definition of a Northern entrepreneur, would en
sure that you're going to get 50 per cent of your income 
tax awarded to the Yukon, but you 're also going to re
ceive the benefit of the fact that you' veensured that the 
capital investment, as you cited, in the printing business 
is here and that investment in assets, in capital equip
ment is available then, perhaps because government 
had a major use for printing certain documents, certain 
forms, whatever, is then available to the public and a 
greater use is then made so the socio-economic benefit 
then takes just an astronomical expansion. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Lengerke ? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr . Chairman, Mr. Kapty ans
wered I think most of my next question in his last state
ment. 

I will ask him just on the qualification of a northern 
entrepreneur, the appendix A and I don't know if he's 
got it, is this the one that the Task Force recommended 
or is this a strange document as far as you 're con
cerned? 

Mr. Kapty: Yes, it principally embodies the condi-
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tions set down, or the definition. It just words it a little 
differently than how we set it out. 

Mr. Lengerke: Okay, the other question, Mr. 
Chairman, that I 've got emanates from Mr. Kapty's 
comments again about the contract that was let for the 
Robert Campbell Bridge, the $700,000.00 to deck that 
particular item. We use a multiplier of seven per cent, if 
it was in the case of a local contractor, but there is a 
multiplier in the case of the outside contractor as well. 
Certainly all the dollars didn't go out of Yukon. I'm sure 
that that contractor hired some local help as well and 
materials were bought. Did you do any calculation of 
that, because certainly it wasn't-- all the dollars leave 
the Yukon, I'm sure? 

Mr. Kapty: No, we weren't able to come up with 
anything in the way of an indica tor and this is why we've 
framed a resolution calling for this socio-economic con
sideration or study. Very obviously, each individual 
contract, be it $10,000.00 or $1 million, had very different 
material requirements , the labour requirements, so 
that the multiplier effect, the socio-economic consider
ation is going to vary substantially. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Just one follow-up to that. I just want 
to say that I'm probably one of those fellows too that I 
like the low bid system and the advantages that has. I 
still like the innovative contractor or businessman. I 
think that certainly they are going to survive, but I also 
recognize, of course, that we have to do something in the 
North to try and provide that base of services that we so 
require to proceed. 

One of the other questions I was going to ask the 
Members of the Task Force, if one of your recommen
dations was really a strategy for development as I think 
the Honourable Minister of Local Government was al
luding to, did you make that kind of recommendation in 
your report? Because I think that is a very basic one and 
one that would answer a lot of these questions if we could 
burst the bubble and have this proceeded with? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty? 

Mr. Kapty: We did not deal with development, per 
se. We looked at Government though in a number of 
other recommendations suggesting that long range 
planning on Government's part would assist northern 
entrepreneurs in gearing up for contracts, be they of the 
$10,000.00 or $1 million magnitude, so that in talking of 
development, we really addressed the question to Gov
ernment that perhaps planning in a consultative pro
cess with the entrepreneur, the businessman, the indi
vidual of the North, that was interested in doing busi
ness with the Government would in fact assist in the 
development of Northern enterprise. 

Springing a $5 million contract, and I-'m sure that 
doesn't happen.mind you,but a large expenditure by 
Government made without any consideration for its ef
fect on the capability of northern entrepreneurs cer
tainly places them then at the disadvantage. If they 
can't come up with their equipment to do the job, then 
obviously they are not going to be able to participate and 
maybe that's why we have 29 per cent of the contracts 
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that are not fulfilled by Yukon entrepreneurs. 
I ask the question her~ of the Green Paper, what types 

of Services are not available that make up 29 per cent of 
the tenders and why aren't they available? We are quite 
proud of our business development and it was amply 
displayed t) us in our meetings, in our deliberations in 
the Northwest Territories. The far flung scattered na
ture of development in the Northwest Territories to the 
Yukon was like one century from the other in time, as 
far as development of enterprise is concerned. 

Mr. Chairman: I 'm going to declare a brief recess. 
I'd like to remind Committee Members that this is a 
Green Paper and they could give consideration to a 
motion or something to give Government direction 
when we return. 

Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Do the witnesses have time to spend 
any longer than what they have now, or-? 

Mr. Chairman: We did try to get through it so the 
witnesses could be excused, but there already are 
another four people who have questions and I could see 
it going on for a while yet. 

rRECESS! 

Mr. Chairman: I call this meeting to order. 
Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would 
like to refer back to a query that my colleague Mrs . 
Whyard asked a little earlier in relation to organized 
labour and when we are getting into contracts as big as 
half a million if not over, I think it is a fairly good 
assumption to say that you're involved with organized 
labour in relation to the work force. 

I'd like to address a question to Mr. Boyd, if I could. In 
relation to the Unions that are representing the various 
trades, does the employer have the ability to request a 
future employee to go to work for them or do they have 
to go along the list in relation to priorities or seniorities 
in the various unions? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 

Mr. Boyd: Yes, the employer has a name request 
privilege and I call it a privilege. The name request, if 
the man has worked for you, if you were his previous 
employer, that 's immediately his previous employer, 
you have the ability to name request him. If he has 
worked for an employer in-between his duration of emp
loyment with you, then you do not have that ability. 

The name request is a consideration of the unions and 
it is made up to their discretion. Now it's prevalent, but 
it is not necessarily law or a constitution or anything 
else, it's just something that they're managing. They 
can change it at will. They decide it within their own 
head offices, so to speak, so it's not something that may 
go on forever , but it is prevalent and usable at this point 
in time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, the reason I asked 
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this question is. for an example, in relation to a yo11ng 
fellow that's just starting out in the work force, and I 
think th is is a concern of all Members here, is his or her 
ability to become a member of a particular union which 
sometimes is very difficult. At the same t ime, in rel a
tion to the work force for members that may hypotheti
cally, be a member of one particular union but a job 
comes open in another particular union, say it's in the 
operating field rather than the area of say the 
Teamster's, he really doesn't have the ability to trans
fer to be able to be employed by an employer who would 
like that particular individua l to come to work for him 
because they know that he or she is a very r eliable 
employee, whetht~r it be five years ago that they had 
them employed or whether it was two months prior . 

It 's a concern of everybody, I think, in relat1on to 
northern labour. I know with my experiences that many 
times people from Outside tha t belong to a union have 
gotten priority and I don' t really think , I know I' m g·< 
ting off the subject here but, I really don ' t think that we 
can do anything about it. I do strongly feel that these 
people should be given priorities with the Union in rela
tion to residence. I realize that's a problem tha t unions 
have to cope with. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 

Mr. Boyd: That might be a problem that's beyond our 
jurisdiction , but possibly within your own jurisdiction. 
It is improper, with the union rules and regulations, it 's 
improper for a person to carry more than one card , or in 
turn , belong to more than one union. Anybody that seeks 
to drop from one union to join another a utomatically 
goes on to the bottom of the lis t. He has the least senior
ity. 

It is very difficult for young people, particularly in 
years of employment, it's very difficult for young peo
ple to join unions. First of all , they are normally not 
qualified and secondly, there 's always such a large or 
long waiting lis t in times of high unemployment that it 's 
pointless for them to join the union because they are so 
far down on the lis t that they won 't get employment in 
that season in any event. 

As you mentioned, Mr. Lang, the labour subject is 
probably not too pertinent to the Task Force. It's 
another ball of wax totally and it's something that you 
can' t look into in five minutes, believe me, it's a very 
deep subject. 

Mr. Chairman: I have one clarification, Mr. Boyd, 
you make reference to a union or a Unions? 

Mr. Boyd: Into a union or a Unions, I made reference 
to all unions. 

Mr. Chairman: That's not quite correct. 
Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, if we can get back 
to the Task Force recommendations, just a small 
nitty-gritty question. 

If a company has begun in the north aided with de
velopment funds from a government department or 
thorugh the Territorial Government Small Bus iness 
Loans or whatever the source being the taxpayer, do 
you still think that they merit some kind of special diffe-
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rential treatment? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 

Mr. Boyd: Yes, I would think they merit the bid diffe
rential treatment, the funds that have been made avail
able to them a re repayable funds. They're not a debt 
forgiving fund , they are merely a fund with possibly a 
more favo urable interest rate than they might get from 
a commercial outlet. The fund is designed to do one 
thing , the differential is des igned to do another thing. 

The fund , if I might use a loose interpretation is de
s igned to get the entrepreneur into bus iness, a nd the 
differential is designed to make life possible for him 
when he does get into business. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. McCall, I think we all realize that 
northern entrepreneurs are bidding into rather a nar
row economy in the North and I think we all will concede 
that most of that economy is government money . 

Mr. Kapty a lluded to , when he said the northern en
trepreneurs often aren' t geared up to be able to bid on a 
$5 million contract or a large contract when it's sort of 
sprung on them. I was wondering whether the witnesses 
would care to comment whether it would asist the en
trepreneurs and the businesses, the small contractors 
in the North , if they had an opportunity to know what the 
Government was planning. What kind of expenditure 
the Government was planning say in the next five years. 
If even an estimate or some round figures of the 
Government's five year forecasts for capital spending 
were made available to them , would this assist in letting 
them plan for the future so that they would be in a 
position to bid on these various contracts that would be 
put forward. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 

Mr. Boyd: From the heavy construction or medium 
construction point of view, the answer to your question 
is def ini tely, absolutely the more long range planning 
that is done and the more tha t it is known to the indus try. 
the more industry can tune and gear itself to take care or 
that type of planning or to take care of that type of 
development. 

Very quickly, a paving program right now there are 
no local paving contractors. If it was the government's 
intention to have a fi ve year paving program through
out the Yukon , Yukon contractors would , could and 
would gear for that program. But as it s tands right now, 
it will consistently be bid by Outside contractors for the 
simple lack of plans and equipment. So, from our point 
of view, the answer to the question is definitely it would 
be of great advantage to us. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty. 

Mr. Kapty: To further jus t add a couple of words to 
Mr. Boyd 's reply. The scope does not only fall on the 
extreme end, the high expansion end or the large con
tracts, it also applies to the special ized area of particu
lar equipment. It might be the difference of whether we 
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have a local entrepreneur providing a certain service 
being the investment of $50,000.00, $25,000.00 in a certain 
piece of equipment, for which he is unable to justify the 
expenditure simply because he doesn't really know how 
much work he's going to get on it so he omits, just lets 
that business go by. And a good example is the example 
of printing. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, just one final , 
rather general question. The reason that we're trying to 
encourage Northern businesses, aside from the fact 
that they invest their money and it stays here, is be
cause of the difference in cost they face in competing 
with Outside bidders. Would it be a fair assumption on 
my part that, with continuation of controls, with com
petititive transportation costs, past the point where we 
have now arrived, where I have observed that costs of 
living are rising Outside almost at the same rate as 
here, would you visualize that these special differen
tials might not be required in the reasonably near fu
ture? Or is this always going to be a Northern require
ment? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd. 

Mr. Boyd: I don't know that it will always be a North
ern requirement. I would like to think that, given 
reasonable time, the industries will get themselves on 
their feet and become viable and can stand competition 
from anywhere. But as far as the cost of living is con
cerned, regardless of the factors Outside, in their rela
tionship to the fact that here, the cost of living here will 
always be higher. You're going to burn, regardless of 
the price of fuel, you're going to burn, you know, many 
times greater than your Outside equals are. You're al
ways gong to have freight on it, you're always going to 
have, you know, vast distances to move it. You're work
ing on a seasonal basis in most applications or in a lot of 
applica tions , you've got a tremendous carry-over. 
You're working in a restricted area, restricted mar
kets. I think the cost of living and those factors are 
greater and will remain greater and will remain prop
ortionately greater than the same costs Outside. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty. 

Mr. Kapty: I'd like to elaborate on this seasonality of 
the Yukon, which we are all so familiar with. When we 
employ people in the Yukon and train them for various, 
various duties, various qualifications, we are only able 
to employ them inrelation to British Columbia or Al
berta for three, three and a half, four months, at best, of 
employment and I'm talking about the industries that 
are more concerned and involved with development of 
our natural resources where there are limitations of 
environment are involved. I speak of the limitation of 
employment of peoples. 

I should also speak about the limitation of employ
ment of assets. A Northern entrepreneur buys a piece of 
equipment, be it a dump truck or whatever it is, he 
employs it for three months of the year. His competitor 
in B.C. employs it for five months of the year. 
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He spread his overhead over two more moths of re
venue generation, over a period of revenue generation, 
which is two months longer, so that these factors, these 
economic factors, of the seasonality of the Yukon, are a 
substantial consideration in why the b id differential has 
meaningful purpose to it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, just a quick 
question. If the Yukon Territorial Government were to 
implement such a system, in the opinion of the witnes
ses, would they think a test period would be a good idea, 
such as maybe three years or two years? Have you got 
any ideas on that? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Kapty ? 

Mr. Kapty: Mr. Chairman, if I might reply to that, 
the Federal Minister, then Minister of Indian Affairs 
and Northern Development Judd Buchanan, suggested, 
or placed, this bid differential into place on a three-year 
period. I am not aware of the period, if there is a period, 
which the Northwest Territories' Government placed 
this into effect. They have a policy in effect; whether it's 
indefinitely or whether it's for a one, two or three or 
more year period,l'm not certain, but I would certainly 
suggest that a period of three years would be approp
riate and that the effects of the policy be assessed dur
ing and at the conclusion of this period. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Just a- obvious, I guess, but just to 
follow up to that, would it be something less that we 
used, do you think that would be, you know, say a year or 
a year and a half, would that be time to measure it? 
Three years , I guess, would be the minimum, I guess. 
You could ... 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 

Mr. Boyd: I think three years would be desirable. 
You're endeavouring to do something that hasn't really 
been done before in a concise form and I think it should 
be a period and then a stop so you can evaluate it. It's 
imperative that we help, but it's also imperative that we 
hold costs down. If we find it being self-inflationary and 
so on and so forth , then conceivably it should be discon
tinued. Certainly it has to be appraised.lf it's not doing 
good, then it has to be stopped, and I think a three-year 
is a reasonable test period. 

Mr. Chairman: Any further questions for the wit
nesses? 

Mrs. Whyard ? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Boyd has 
just said something which triggered another one. I un
derstood that there was always an unwritten law that 
northern bidders got a preferential treatment some 
years ago and to my knowledge this was in effect. There 
was a five per cent, as I recall locally. What happened to 
that, and why isn't it still in effect? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Boyd? 
) 



Mr. Boyd: I have never known a bid differential in 
the years that I have been here, Mrs. Whyard. Various 
representations have been made from the Contractors' 
Association to the Municipality, to the Territorial Gov
ernment, etcetera, but as long as I've been in the con
struction or the contracting business I have never 
known a northern preferential treatment. 

Mr. Chairman: Any further questions for the wit
nesses? 

I'd like to thank you, Mr. Boyd and Mr. Kapty, for the 
kind assistance you have given us today. 

Mr. Kapty: Mr. Chairman, I would like to mention 
that, in consideration of further recommendations of 
the Task Force, ~ believe the report of the Task Force 
WllS tabled in the House, if there are other considera
tions in the future of the other 41 Resolutions, I'm sure 
that Mr. Boyd, if I might speak for him , and myself 
would be happy to make our time available. We, to
gether with two members from the Northwest Ter
ritories, pardon me, four members from the Northwest 
Territories, two from the High Arctic and two from the 
Western Northwest Territories, spent a lot of time over 
a year and a half and we'd be happy to give the House 
some of our experience, some of the representation that 
was made to us. We had a lot of representation made to 
us that was verbally transmitted in discussion and in 
meetings, and we'd be happy to answer questions re
garding any of the other r ecommendations. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you for the kind offer. Thank 
you very much. 

Is there any further discussion on this Green Paper? 
Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Some comments, Mr. Chairman, on 
the Paper and also on the Committee that was here. I 
was very, very happy to hear the answers to some of the 
questions that were asked. I didn't have to ask too many 
of those questions because I think I understand the Bid 
Differential system fair ly well, already, and if it goes 
into effect I'll be quite happy. 

I think that maybe we should just take a look at ourse
lves and see what we're doing towards helping this situ
ation in the Yukon and possibly looking forward to the 
day that maybe bid differential wouldn't even be neces
sary and maybe not necessary now if we had taken into 
consideration the ver y points that those two witnesses 
brought up today through questioning here, where they 
have stated it, you know, they realize the problem of the 
small contractor in the Yukon Territory. I realize that 
problem, too. 

When we're making up legislation here in this House 
and we come up with such things as, possibly, the Elec
trical Protections Ordinance and we are smothering the 
consumer with-- and the small businessman and many 
of the people with regulations to help him, that in the 
long run is liable to hinder him, it's just some of the 
things I think we could look at very carefully and re
member that we do have small contractors and people 
in the Territory who aren't big operators and they are 
part of the backbone of this country. 

) As I said, the bid differential , in my opinion, is a 
necessary thing at this time and this is the reason. I 
don't really think that it's somethjng we should ~I ways 
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have, it is not really the best for equality all over 
Canada, but it is a necessary step now. 

I think that the money that we would gain from this 
type of a thing, back into this Territory, is well worth 
what little extra cost that it's going to involve us in. 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further discussion? 
Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I thought the wit
nesses were excellent in their responses to the questions 
that were asked of them. I do think this is an area of 
concern in the Yukon and I think it's an area that should 
be reviewed in totality. I'm talking in relation to resi
dential qualifications and this kind of thing in relation to 
offices and it goes on and on and on. One of the witnesses 
made comments that all provinces have this type of 
thing in effect, but it's done in different fashions. 
Quebec, apparently, is quite open, other provinces more 
or less disguised the preferential treatment that they do 
give to their small business entrepreneurs. I think it is 
an area that we should be prepared to look at to see what .; 
we can do to come up and accommodate some of the 
problems that the small business people have. 

I think this just touches on the subject, I don't think it 
necessarily resolves the situation. If this is to go 
through, Mr. Chairman, it would be my understanding, 
it would be similar to the federal proposal that it would 
be a three-year program and then reviewed at that time 
to see whether or not it was working and if it wasn't 
working then changed, modified or possibly deleted . 

Is this not correct? I'd like to hear the comments of 
the witness . 

Mr. Gillespie: This would be up to the Territorial 
Government, Mr. Chairman. Ottawa has chosen, the 
Federal Government has chosen , in the Department of 
Indian and Northern Affairs, to adopt it as a three-year 
experiment. Not all other federal departments involved 
in contracting in the North have chosen to follow suit, as 
yet. · 

I'm not aware of how long the NWT has chosen, what 
time period they have established or whether they've 
set a time period, but the option would be ours. We could 
do one, two, three, or an unlimited period of time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I just would like to 
also raise my voice and thank the witnesses that we 
have because I think there's one significant point that 
came out in their presentation and that's there's a defi
nite need to relieve people in the Yukon, not only one 
particular part of the people in the Yukon but everyone 
in the Yukon, of the high cost involved in the Yukon. I 
don't think it's the real direction we should take with the 
way the Green Paper is suggesting to us. I think we 
should also think of working people in the Yukon. I 
mean, the wages in the Yukon at the present time are on 
par, and lower in some instances, than in the provinces. 
Does that mean that the people working for those con
tractors is going to get an automatic ten per cent raise in 
their wages, in their salaries? 

I'm also thinking of othe:- business enterprises in the 
Yukon who have never had a chance to bid on govern
ment contracts. What are we going to do with those 



people? Are we going to give them preferential treat
ment of some sort or another? There's nothing sug
gested in the Green Paper. 

All that I would like to suggest to the House is to the 
Committee he re , that there is a message come 'across 
there's a definite need for relief needed for the people in 
the Yukon. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry I didn' t 
get it before, but I have one question to ask Mr. Gilles
pie. The contracting authority, does Mr. Gillespie at this 
time see actually who that contracting authority would 
be, other than the Territorial Government at the Ad
ministrative level? Would there be some other system , 
board or such ? 

Mr. Gillespie: Not where -- we haven ' t contemp
lated anything as far as Territorial contracts are con
cerned. We have not contemplated using some other 
authority for Government contracts if this is what you 
mean. 

Mr. Chairman: I must advise the Committee that 
this is only i.nformation , this Green Paper, and any re
~ommendatlons would have to be supported with a mo
tiOn. 

Mr. Lengerke? 

~r. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, maybe we could 
brmg s uch a motion forward . We h:!ve a motion of 
Committee of the Whole, moved by myself, seconded by 
the Member from Kluane, that it is the opinion of this 
Assembly that the Yukon Territorial Government insti
tute a system of Bid Differential similar to that as re
commended by the Federal Task Force on Northern 
Business Preference, and similar to that as instituted 
by the Northwest Territorial Government. 

BE IT RESOLVED tha t such a system be im
plemented for a period of not more than three years and 
that it commence as soon as applicable legislation can 
be prepared or regulations amended . 
.~URTHER that the economic impact and practica

bility of such a system be reviewed and reported on at 
the end of the three-year period. 

Mr. Chairman: Could I have a copy of tha t motion, J 
Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ad
dres~ a questi~n to ~he wi.tness. It is my understanding 
that if somethmg hke this was to come into effect, it 
:wouldn't need legislation, it would be regulation, would 
It not? 

Mr. Gillespie: It would be pursuant to the Financial 
Administration Ordinance, I believe. I think the Hon
ourable Member is quite correct. 

Mr. Chairman: Is it Members ' wishes that they be 
provided with a copy of this motion? 
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Some Members: Yes. 

Mr. Chairman: Very well. 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr . Chairman, I might have tore
write that so that if you're going to copy it so that every
body can understand it , I'm sure . 

Mr. Chairman: I 'll declare a very brief recess. 

rRecess J 

Mr. Chairman: I call this Committee to order. 
It has been moved by Mr. Lengerke , seconded by Mrs . 

Kluane--that is what it says, 
THAT it is the opinion of this Assembly that the Yukon 

Territorial Government institute a system of bid diffe
rential , similar to that recommended by the Federal 
Tast Force of Northern Business Preference (and simi
lar to that instituted by the Northwest Territorial Gov
ernment), 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT such a system be im
plemented for a period of not more than three years, and 
that it comfTlence as soon as Contract Regulations are 
amended. 

FURTHER that this l'Conomic impact and practica
bility of such a system be reviewed and reported on at 
the end of the three year period. 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, it should be 'that the 
economic impact'. I think it's just a typographical 
error. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I don' t support this particular Motion, 
Mr. Chairman. I personally don' t even support the 
Green Paper after listening to the debate going on about 
this particular rna tter, I am not going to be a part to the 
first stepping stone to monopolization. I'm not going to 
be a party to encouraging isolating the Yukon for any 
businessman living in the Yukon, who has his business 
in the Yukon. I'm not really interested at all. Although 
policies are a lways ques tions and ideas and 
philosophies are always questioned, I do believe that 
free enterprise is part of our system and when we say 
free enterprise, we mean the whole of this country, and 
not just the Yukon, so I cannot accept the Motion. I 
cannot accept the Green Paper which the Motion makes 
reference to. I think it would be a very foolish mistake 
for us to accept something like this at this point in time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, I'm very surprised, 
very surprised at the Member that is here for the people 
in the Yukon Territory, and especially the workers in 
the Yukon Territory, tha t wouldn't back up such a mo
tion as this . It is possibly going to give those people more 
work in the Yukon Territory by Yukon contractors and 

· so forth and so on. I'm very, very surprised, Mr. Chair-
man. 

Mr. Chairman: I don't know why you are surprised a . 
Mr. McCall. 

Any further debate? 



Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I think the previous speaker is not realiz
ing what he is voting on. 

Mr. Chairman: Any further debate? 
Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I think there is 
some very interesting points that perhaps Honourable 
Members could have overlooked in the Green Paper. 

One point is that by the Federal Regulations , the Ter
ritorial Government is bound in all the major contracts 
by the bid differential system. That is in all those areas 
where the Engineering Services Agreement comes into 
play, that that money which comes under the Engineer
ing Services Agreement is liable for the bid differential 
system under the Department of Indian Affairs and 
Northern Development, at the present time. 

I would really like to see the advantages shown with 
the major contracts that come into this country which 
are all Federal oriented and under the Engineering 
Services Agreement before the Territorial Government 
rushes pall mall into the same type of system. The big 
money where the major contracts are, are now under a 
bid differential system. 

I really would like to see that in play for a period of 
time and analyzed before the YTG follows suit. I think 
we have the ability to have the best of both worlds at this 
time, to look at how the Federal bid differential system 
is working before we could contribute, and I'm serious 
about this, to an inflationary spiral of contracting costs 
where the only loser will be the people of the Yukon and 
the taxpayers of the Yukon. 

This could come about and I'm serious about it. If we 
rush into this without really examining what the effects 
of it are, over a period of time where it is presently in 
effer.t and that takes care of the major money contracts 
in the Yukon. I just think that there's so much more to it, 
that we could be doing so much harm by not really 
looking at this over a period of time as to what the 
original step does that we could, and I think you can 
bring economic arguments, you could prove that 
perhaps it would be a detriment rather than an advan
tage, in the long run. 

So, I'm going to surprise a lot of people, too, I think, 
and particularly all my constituents down on Industrial 
Road, by not voting for this Resolution at this time. I 
think thatl have very good reasons. I don 't think they've 
been explored deeply enough. I think that we're looking 
at it just from a-maybe it's a tough thing to say, but 
maybe from a politically advantageous situation at the 
moment, without really looking into it deeply, of what 
the economic circum:>tances could be . And the 
economic circumstances might do completely the oppo
site of what Honourable Members hope to do and it could 
start off an inflationary spiral of contracting costs that 
nobody would win on. It's just another 10 per cent and 
the only guy that's going to pay is the guy that we're 
trying to protect, all the taxpayers of Yukon. 

So, you know, we've got it in operation, by a federal 
government directive, where the big money boys play 
and I think that we should-let's look at that over a 
period of time, a three year period isn't that long, before 
we just rush headlong and pall mall into following the 
federal government lead. I think that at the end of that 
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three year period, that we all might have a different 
idea of what that bid preferential really means to Yukon 
and contractors in Yukon and perhaps we won't be that 
fussy to follow suit, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre. 

Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Chairman, I agree to a certain 
extent to what the previous speaker said about the in
flationary effect that a bid preferential system would 
have. There's no doubt in my mind that if we adopt a bid 
preferential system, that it will result in inflation and 
that every contract that we enter into in the future will 
be increased by the percentage of the bid differential. 

However, the major contracts are being affected by 
the federal bid preferential and the fact that YTG is 
forced into it in their Engineering Agreement contracts, 
will really not give us a picture of what is going to 
happen to the smaller contracts that we're really in
terested in. I don't think any observation of the effect of 
the program that the YTG is now forced into for three 
years will give us any indication at all , because I don't 
think that the bid differential will show up so much in 
those major contracts. It's the smaller contracts that 
are going to be affected by the Territorial Government 
contract regulations that we're interested in and I re
allydon' t see that we shouldn'tenter into something like 
this for a period of three years and just find out how it 
works for the smaller contracts. 

Personally, I think it will be inflationary, but I'm gong 
to support the resolution. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I don't think any of us 
here are prepared to accept this motion because it's 
politically advantageous to do so. I think we're all con
cerned about the people in the Yukon, we're honest 
enough to realize that the forecast for the next year or 
two .is not that bright and we have unemployed. The 
prospects of contracts and work projects on the horizon 
aren't that many and also the situation across Canad, 
look at the number of unemployed. 

Now we ar going to have more and more companies 
and this is where I have my great fear, Saskatchewan 
companies, B.C. companies, Manitoba companies, who 
are also looking at a type of slump, are going into Al
berta. Alberta's gong to be glutted. We're going to get a 
lot of them up here and if the bidding is going to be 
competitive, it could be inflationary, but I'm sure with 
the amount of bidding that we can expect during this 
sort of a recession period, will probably offset the ef
fects of the preferential treatment which we are giving 
to our Northern entrepreneurs . I have misgivings, none 
of us really know what's going to happen, but, in order to 
give our people a bit of a break at this time , l'!ll quite 
prepared to accept, to support this motion for the three 
year basis and then have it evaluated at the end of that 
time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Unless somebody else wants to speak. 

Some Members: It doesn't matter . 
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Mr. Lengerke: Yes . Mr . Chairman .. I can well ap
preciate the comments made by the Minister of Local 
Government when he spoke. When the witnesses where 
here I certainly had to agree with a lot of his comments. 

I am also one of those, as I said earlier, one of those 
people that believe in the low bid system and I think that 
probably we could take our chances very well with that 
alone. But, we have heard and it's not new to Yukon, it's 
something that's across the North, we hear the wants of 
contractors, people in business, for such a system to be 
put in place. I have some misgivings about it as well, but 
r would not even have proposed the Motion had I also 
realized of course that a lot of our contracts, the major 
contracts that the Yukon Territorial Government now 
give out are under this policy already. The Honourable 
Member from Mayo said it very well when he said that 
we really would not be able to measure any impact of 
this, or even find out if it's practical until we see what 
effect it has on the smaller contracts. 

I thought possibly in presenting the Motion that 
maybe I should have cut the time period down to coin
cide with the three years that the Federal one is in 
existance, but I understand that it's just been that policy 
has just been implemented so it looks like these two 
would run out about the same time. 

With that , Mr. Chairman, I would hope that we can get 
some support for this and certainly there are some 
questions, but I think we are on the right track and if 
we 're not, I don't think the damage will be that great 
and certainly we would be able to assess our situation 
then. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I think earlier in de
bate, I mentioned the point that in review of our 1976-77 
contracts that there would have been very little, if any 
effect on the contracts that were let in that particular 
case. I think I'm pretty safe in saying that that was the 
analys is that was done. 

I also agree with the Member from Kluane in relation 
to the fact that I think we are going into an era of our 
history where our economy isn't going to look that 
bright for probably another year or two years depend
ing upon possibly one or two maybe major develop
ments which we really have no control over. 

I think at the same time, Mr. Chairman, it should be 
pointed out that in most fields we do have two, three, 
four, five , possibly more Yukon companies competing 
in the same areas, if it's a general area in relation to 
construction and this kind of thing. So in most cases, it 
will be inter-competition in many cases and subse
quently this would not apply. 

I agree with the Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre that it's an area that we really 
don ' t know that much about, but then as far as I'm 
concerned, we should try it and see how it works. 

After three years I think it should be reviewed, in fact, 
I think there should be an ongoing review so that we 
know exactly where we stand in relation to the contracts 
le t by this Government, and subsequently if it isn't 
working , if there 's something wrong, it should be mod
ified. 

As I said earlier, I think the whole area should be 
reviewed. I don't know at the present time in relation to 
the Government whether we have the capabilities of 
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reviewing the whole area of preferential differentials in 
many areas rather than just in the area of contracting, 
like in the area of construction contracts being let. 

I think that in the witnesses· approach to the problem. 
they pointed out that many of the Provinces are very 
open in rela tion to their ability to give preference to 
their small business entrepreneurs. At the same time, 
some areas are disguised. I think the whole area should 
be reviewed because I think we're just getting a tip of 
the iceberg in relation to at least trying to accommodate 
the problems that our small contractors are having in 
relation to the cost of living in the Yukon. So subse
quently, Mr. Chairman , I'll support the Motion. As I 
said earlier, I have my misgivings to a point, but I think 
at the same time we should try it, see how it works, and I 
think that we should also, at the same time, if it's not 
working, we should, as a Legislature, be prepared to 
amend it at a certain time. 

Mr. Chairman: Are you ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: been moved by Mr. Lengerke, 
seconded by Mrs. Watson, that it is the opinion of this 
Assembly that the Yukon Territorial Government 
institute a system of bid differentials similar to that 
recommended by the Federal Task Force on Northern 
Business Preference and similar to that instituted by 
the Northwest Territorial Government. 

BE IT RESOLVED that such a system be implemen
ted for a period of not more than three years and that it 
commence as soon as contract regulations are 
amended. 

FURTHER that the economic impact and practic
ability of such a system be reviewed and reported on at 
the end of a three-year period . 

By show of hands , all those in favour? 
Contrary? 
Motion ·is carried. 

v 
(Motion carried; 

Mr. Chairman: We will go on to the White Paper on 
Decentralization. 

Ms. Millard? 
Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, as I said earlier today, 

the City of Dawson feels very strongly about this decen
tralization policy and particularly the White Paper on 
Decentralization. 

I've copied the letter that I received, or that many 
people have received, to Mr. Gillespie from the City of 
Dawson, for everyone and, since we're not able to have 
the City as a witness, I think my questions will be con
centrated on the ones that are brought up in this letter. I 
feel they're a very good analysis of what happened. 

The City asked for a breakdown in the costs which are 
mentioned in the White Paper, and I also copied those 
for Members. It starts - it doesn't have any title , but it 
starts with "Capital Costs" at the top and is broken 
down further as it goes along. 

I might state that the Decentralization Policy in itself 
has been endorsed by the Association of Yukon 
Municipalities and, in a way, by motion in this Legisla
tive Assembly on moving the Tourism Department. 
Certainly, it has had motions from the City of Dawson, 
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in fact in a letter to local government the City of Dawson 
has recommended decentralization pilot projects. They 
have also written to Parks and sent a motion to them 
asking for decentralization of their facilities, which 
Erik Nielsen has supported. 

So, I think that it really has sort-of general consent. Of 
course, the main objection in the White Paper is the 
cost. Before getting into those details, I'd like to ask the 
witness if he agrees that the purpose of a policy of de
centralization is for stimulation of the economy? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, there is no question 
that decentralization, along the lines suggested, would 
have a beneficial effect on the economy of Dawson City. 
If four families, ana that's probably what it would be, at 
least initially, are moved to Dawson City, they would 
expend money, that would be just four more families 
employed in that area and, with the closure of Clinton 
Creek in the offing, it would help to mitigate the effects 
of the closure in that area, and this is quite important. 

So, in that respect, the concept of assistance to Daw
son City by such a move is certainly valid. 

Mr.Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: I would go further then and ask the 
witness if he agrees with this quote from the letter from 
the City of Dawson: " Decentralization of government 
is, in our opinion, the most economical method of sub
sidization of a local or regional economy. Rather than 
'inventing employment' that may or may not produce 
needed jobs and services, decentralization is relocating 
established jobs from an area where these jobs have a 
minimal economic impact to an area where a high 
economic impact will be realized." 

Is there agreement in the witness with this? 

Mr. Gillespie: I don't think there's anything-- I don 't 
think there's any way I can provide a simple yes or no 
answer, that this is the most efficient effective way of 
subsidizing and bringing economic benefits to an area. 
There could be a good many others. Certainly there 
have been attempts, representations made to the Fed
eral Government to accelerate the Historic Sites prog
ram. That would have benefits and employment, capi
tal expenditures, capital works and so on, that's another 
measure. 

A direct comparison between this and the direct emp
loyment, the federal direct employment programs, I 
presume these are the ones that are being referred to, 
Works Canada and this kind of thing ; I'm not in a posi
tion to evaluate those one against the other, I'm not an 
economist. But, it is-- I do know that it is a very complex 
subject and certainly there 's no simple answer to it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would like to 
ask Mr. Gillespie a couplt! of questions on this White 
Paper here, on the $360,000.00 for capital expenditures 
and additional operating expenditures ranging from 
$41,000.00 and $73,000.00 depending upon the staff and so 
on and so on. 

My question is, is this what it would cost up there? Are 
you speaking of what it would cost up there? You say 
"additional" I think, in one place. Is this the additional 
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amount it would cost to have them up there, t he 41 and 73 
thousand , especially that it would to have them here, or 
are you just taking the figure from here and moving 
them up there and add ing more to them? 

Mr. Gillespie: No, Mr. Chairman, this is the incre
mental costs. At the moment, our Tourism staff are all 
located within this building. If they were to move to 
Dawson City, new office accommodation would be re
quired and that's a straight additional cost. Assuming 
that roughly 1,000 square feet is what is required , our 
Public Works people indicate that that would cost 
roughly $150,000.00 for that alone: Accommodation is 
another matter. These individuals; I think, without ex
ception, are all living in their own houses here. Housing 
would have to be provided for them there, at least ini
tially, and there would be a cost for that as well . 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman , since the witness has 
mentioned office space and .housing , probably the two 
greatest costs, I would like to question him more closely 
on those two aspects . 

First of all, the staff housing is being considered as if 
you had to build four new houses a t $50,000.00 each, 
bringing a total of $200,000.00. Is there no staff housing 
available, since six new units were taken to Dawson for 
YTG, one of the units, I understand , is being rented at 
this point to a local businessman because there is no 
YTG staff in it. That's the first question. Has it been 
considered that perhaps there is other staff housing 
available? 

The other one is just as important. The office space, 
according to the City of Dawson, they have made some 
investigation into office space, it says that no serious 
effort has been made to reach a co-operative agreement 
with Parks Canada concerning office space. By the 
way, I just telephoned the City of Dawson this afternoon 
to confirm this with them and to see if they've had any 
further contact concerning this. It is still in the same 
state. 

The YTG representation on the Dawson Co-ordinating 
Committee, which I presume has something to do with 
Parks, has never raised the question ; in fact, we know 
that Parks Canada is looking for possibilities of entering 
into joint ventures to return historic buildings back to a 
practical use. In other words, has any real investigation 
been made under the different possibilities that are av
ailable in Dawson? Has anyone asked, for instance, the 
City to make a study of possible office space in Dawson 
and possible housing? 

Mr. Gillespie: I was not aware that there was one 
territorial housing unit that was being rented at this 
point in time. I do know that, at the time we put this 
together , we did contact the Yukon Housing Corpora
tion regarding the availability of staff housing units. At 
that time, we were informed that there were none and 
that if we were to move staff up there, new units would 
have to be built for that purpose, or, as an alternative, it 
is certainly possible-- it certainly might be possible, I 
should say, I don' t know for sure- it might be possible to 
renovate buildings that are already there for this pur
pose but this, itself, has been shown in the past as a 
rather expensiv~ proposition as well , so I don't know 
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that there would be that much difference in the costs 
that would be mcurr<'d. 

As to office space, we had hop<'d and we did approach 
Parks Canad a to discuss the pos~ibil ity of using their 
offi~e space, sharing it. and a lthough mit ially the m<ll 
catwns that we were g1ven were that we might be able 
to. Subsequently. we were told that there is little or no 
prospect of this happen in~ It 's on the basis of that and 
ou~ genera l information regarding the availabil ity of 
off1ce space for this kind of purpose in Dawson that our 
people concluded that we would have to build our own 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I'm sorry to say. 
Mr. Chairman, I can 't quite believe the ~tatement be
cause it's my understandmg the old Administration 
Building in Dawson is ~till owned by YTG. It's this build
ing the City is referring to specifically which the Ills 
toric Sites would be quite willing to co-operate with YTG 
to rebuild to bring it back in a useful structure again as 
an office building, as a museum and also as a structure 
which Dawson City can be proud to have. 

The other alterna tive I suggested to the City myself 
was to use the presen t structure of the Macdonald Lodge 
as an office building and build an a lternative struc ture 
adjacent to the hospi tal, which is much more useful for 
creating a much-enlarged staff area in the ~pita!. You 
can have geriatric care in Dawson again and you also 
have a proper hospital again , which we haven't at the 
present time 

I mean, there are so many altemativcs avmlable if 
the Administration of this Government would just take 
a serious look at the thing and I don't think it was real ly 
done. 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, undoubtedly there 
are alternatives, but those that have been mentioned 
would also cost rnonc} Restoring the old Administra
tion Building or building a new hospital wing or what· 
ever. those would co~t money and our point here is that 
this is a costly proposition, one that at this point in tune 
this Government , in its si tuation of financial constraint, 
cannot move ahead on right now. It doesn't mean that it 
couldn't happen in the future. That has not been said, 
b_ut what has been said is that it is a very costly proposi
tion and one that we cannot afford at this point. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Well, Mr Cha1rman, I don't agree that 
it 's a costly proposition and I' ll have to go through this in 
detail in questioning to prove that because I think the 
lis t of costs here is inflationary. There are a lot of things 
here that a r e doubtful . I would like to have seen a com
pari~on between this because I think this is the highest 
possible cost, between the lughest possible cost ,md the 
lowest possible cost , considering other elements. We 
don' t have that and it's misleading. It says additional 
annual operating expenditures - it's not additional; 
you .have a clerk typist in Whitehorse. you have a 
tourism officer in Whitehorse thai will be paid the same 
as if they go to Dawson. 

I don' t understand why approximately one trip to 
Whitehorse every two weeks is necessary at $8,000.00. 
There's many things here that I would really question 
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and, in fact. I he Ctty of Dawson has questioned in one 
part here. ' The total communication costs , postage, 
telex and other long dis tance telephone, adds up to 
$10,400.00 or $888.67 per month .'' That is in addition to 
the present communication cost of the Department. It 
doesn't say whether it's in addition or not. I presume it 
tsn't. 

There also an additional cost of a photocopier. 
Should the Department be able to take advantage of 
another off1ce space such as Historic Sites, certainly 
they ~hould be able to rent a piece of the photocopier 
that's the re. 

Also. it goes on to say tha t the cost is detailed in the 
Wh1te Paper : it would work out to 200 copies per work
ing clay . I think. even in our office we're not well 
perhaps in our office we 're up to that point, but i think 
we copy an awful lot of things compared to a small part 
of the Tourism Department. 

These things a re a ll very questionable and I just don' t 
fmd the estimates tha t a re given to us acceptable. 

I would like to know if it's possible to have a lower, you 
know, a possibility of, instead of a high estimate which 
is what the witness must agree it is , I would ask him first 
of all if he would agr ee that this is a high cost estimate? 
Could we also have a low cost estimate , considering 
other possibilities and certainly considering the local 
conditions in Dawson? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I would not agree that 
tlus 1s a high cost estimate. I would say it's a rough cost 
estunate and tha t 's all we can, until we get down into 
actually implementing such a thing, it's probably as 
good a~ we can come up with at this point in time. 

We can argue about any one of these points and un
doubtedly they're a ll inaccurate, but ballpark-wise they 
do give an indication of the magnitude of expenditure 
that's. reqUired. We could be off as much as twenty per 
cent e1therway. I would agree with that, but it does give 
an 1dea of the order of magnitude. As to the clerk-typist 
and Tourism officer , as I indicated- or as indicated in 
the Whi te Paper, it's a mood point as to whether these 
would in fact be required or not. 

Our people feel that because of the·- if tourism were to 
be located in Dawson and removed from the hub of the 
Yukon in terms of trans portation links, in fact, there 
would have to be a lot more t ime spent on the road in 
getting to places like Watson Lake and Haines Junction 
and various other communi ties throughout the Yukon. 
In addition to that, that much of the work that our 
Tourism people do inside the Yukon takes place in 
Whitehorse, particularly now that we've entered into a 
contract with the Yukon Visitors' Association and there 
will have to be a good deal of liaison between our 
tourism office and the YV A, there would have to be 
continuing close contact with them. 

The Chamber of Commerce , a lot of the operators and 
government agencies with which they work, are located 
here. It 's unfortunate that Dawson, insofar as tourism is 
concerned , is located at the outer perimeter of this 
wheel. That in itself is what is going to result in a 
number of these additional costs that are shown here. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard ? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman I must express 
admiratiOn for the carefully prepared ~nd documented 
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attempt being made here by the Honourable Member to 
work on behalf of her constituents. but it is my reaction 
that if I were the Director of the Department of 
Tourism, which I am not, Mr. Chairman, and I had an 
alternative as to where to locate people to promote 
tourism, I would put them in Los Angeles. and I would 
put them in Toronto, and I would put them in Anchorage 
to bring business to the Yukon. 

I think there may be other departments of govern
ment which are better suited to such a move to decen
tralization to Dawson City , but that 's not my main point. 
Mr. Chairman, my main question IS that a year and a 
half ago, and again a year ago, I asked for support from 
this government in a concerted push on the Department 
of Indian Affairs, Historic Sites section to accelerate 
their program for Dawson City by at least one year in 
view of the Clinton Creek development because I could 
see no reason why they shouldn't and couldn't. This 
would do a great deal towards what Dawson City de
sires , and I think we would do a great deal more for 
Dawson City than this particular plan. 

I have, as yet, Mr. Chairman. received no indication 
as to why the Department of Indian Affairs, Historic 
Sites cannot expedite their five year or ten year, or 
whatever, plan because it is formulated, it is planned, 
the man years and the dollars have all been worked out. 
Surely in the opinion of the Minister responsible, there is 
just-- there are just grounds for advancing that plan by 
a few months for the benefit of this part of Canada's 
North, and I wonder if the witness can assist us on that 
question. 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman , attempts have been 
made at two levels to try to achieve that very purpose. 

Questions, when put to official s, bring about the re
sponse that it cannot be accelerated because there is a 
planning process that has to be undertaken. Before they 
can accelerate their restoration plans, they have to do a 
certain amount of research in terms of precisely what is 
required. That research is being undertaken now, it is 
not complete, and it has not been brought to the point 
where the restoration work can be accelerated. 

That's the answer that I received when I put that 
question at a meeting h,'re earlier this year. In spite of 
that, attempts have been made, the matter has been 
brought up, I believe, to the Minister, trying to encour
age him and his department to accelerate this program 
to the best of their ability. 

I know the federal government is like the territorial 
government though, it has financial constraints, it has 
manpower constraints, and it has other priorities. I 
don' tknow what their final answer will be, butl do know 
that representations have recently been made along 
these lines to the federal government, to our Minister, to 
see if he can do anything to accelerate this program, 
because I agree with the Honourable Member. This is 
the initiative that is going to have the greater economic 
impact than transferring our tourism office to Dawson 
City. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard ? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, could I be al
lowed one supplementary question which is not exactly 
on this decentralization, but has to do with the plight 
that Dawson City is finding itself in. Could I ask, Mr. 
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Chairman, whether the Honourable Member can in
form me what are the most recent developments bet
wern any community committee from Dawson and the 
Clinton Creek owners regarding disposition of that 
propertv. Have there been some concrete suggestions 
mnde'? is somehodv formulnting plans, is there going to 
be any kind of substitute for employment in that area? 
Have the citizens of Dnwson approached the Depart
ment of National Defence'? What kind of reaction did 
they get? Are there alternatives being pursued in that 
area? • 

:\-fr. Chairman: i\1s. Millard'1 

Ms. ~1illard: \1r . Chairman, I presume the Minister 
is talking about the property at Clinton Creek? At Clin
ton Creek, we nre off the subject by about sixty miles, 
but yes, definitely there have been presentations made 
to the Department of National Defence and to ~h~ Sol
icitor <;eneral. There h;• ve heen from the administra
tion at Clinton Creek, I don't know if there's anything 
dir~ctly from any committee in Dawson City. I know the 
M~mbPr fi'Om Klondike and I have both been writing 
vanous people giving our opinions on what should hap
pen to the property. As far as I know, nothing is going to 
happen, it's going to just bP left there. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I merely raised 
the question because I can see f~r greater returns from 
such a project for Dawson City. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger'? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I thank all the 
Honourable Members concerned with Dawson City, and 
I'm loading the responsibility on the federal govern
ment, because I think the mam concern s:1ould be in this 
government, Dawson is in the Yukon, I think. 

The witness tells us that Dawson City happens to be on 
the outer perimeter of a wheel by the sounds of it. 

I would ask the witness what is the main advertise
ment that Yukon Territorial Government is using? Isn't 
it Dawson City? Without Dawson City and the Klondike 
Gold Rush, there wouldn't be any tourists in this Yukon 
at the present time. 

And furthermore, what is the Territorial Government 
really doing in Dawson City? I say it again as in the 
budget debate, what is the Historic Sites from Ottawa 
doing? They still own a building in Dawson City which 
they are trying to unload to National Historic Sites, for 
years already. In 1962, there was a plaque on there too, 
under the protection of this government, the Territorial 
Government. Somebody moved that plaque again be
cause it was too embarrassing because the building 
became dilapidated. They left it to private society, the 
Dawson City Museum Society, to look after the building 
with minimal grants, hardly any money for us coming 
to Dawson from this government here. Oh yea, the fed
eral government in Ottawa is to blame for- what is this 
Government doing for Dawson City? 

They can't even find enough money to have a dust 
control program between Stewart Crossing and Daw
son. This is what we are complaining about in Dawson 
City. Wed id everything possible in Dawson City to try to 



save Clinton Creek for some other purposes. What assis
tance did we get from this government to preserve Clin
ton Creek for other purposes? 

Nothing. Oh, it's the big father, white father in 
Ottawa's fault, but Dawson City is in the Yukon Territ
ory and this happens to be a responsibility of this gov
ernment and this is what we're asking about. 

In the White Paper it says we gave KV A $5,000.00 and I 
say again as in budget, on the other hand we take away 
$4,000.00, so what are we giving to Dawson City? We're 
using Dawson City left and right, just like I said the 
other day about Indians. We're using them, but we're 
not giving Dawson City anything. This is our complaint. 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Perhaps we could have a fourth 
elected Member on the Executive Committee from 
Dawson City. 

Mr. Gillespie? 

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, the tourism depart
ment, first of all, the Member noted the value of Dawson 
City to the tourism industry in the Yukon and there's no 
questioning that at all . 

The tourism department, though, is not just responsi
ble for looking after the interests of Dawson City. It's 
also responsible for looking after the interests in Watson 
Lake, Haines Junction and other places throughout the 
Yukon and in Whitehorse itself. 

I'm not sure that we should be directing all our atten
tion specifically to Dawson City in regards to tourism. 
We also have obligations for our other two hundred 
places. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, Mr. 
Chairman, I sympathize with the Member from Klon
dike, very much so and the little remark I made about 
Teslin was just something to say. 

I have a question or two and I find myself always -
and Dawson City is a long ways away and there's 
another constit\lency however, I feel for those people 
and I'm wondering if I really knew the answer which 
way I would think about something like this and yet 
there's noway from the government's side thatl'm ever 
going to get the answer. I've always known that and I 
can see it in front of me here that that is not going to be 
the answer as to how much money it would cost to move 
to Dawson City or anything like that, because there are 
so many things that they can put on paper and make it 
very simple. 

A vehicle costs $7,000.00 because it's in Dawson City, I 
don't know why, but there's a vehicle out in the yard 
there now, I presume, that Parks or whatever can use or 
the tourist industry and that's costing us money just the 
same. I don't think it would be much different if it was 
another vehicle, however, that is more or less a pool 
vehicle and probably not charged to all the time to that 
department, so there might be some difference, but I 
find that they're quite willing to put down the total fig
ure of what it might cost, it looks like. · 

As to the one remark, or the answer, whether it was a 
remark or an answer, that Mr. Gillespie gave on the cost 
of travelling in the Yukon Territory and being in the 
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centre in Whitehorse here, it seems to be so much bet- (\ 
ter, cheaper. I would say that that is absolutely wrong. \.._ ) 
It does not cost any more to go from Dawson City, at that 
end of the Territory and to Watson Lake and back to 
Dawson City, than it does to operate out of here and go to 
Watson Lake and come back here and then go to Dawson 
City and come back here. So that's not a very valid 
argument. The mileage is exactly the same, the cost 
would be exactly the same and •here's no-- there'd be no 
more cost in travelling, other than maybe coming di-
rectly to Whitehorse on trips that were not- I agree with 
that. But on an overall picture, there is no difference 
travelling from Dawson City to the other end of this 
country than it is travelling to the middle, if you have to 
work both ways. 

There are many figures in here that -- I can't say 
they're not true figures because I don't know and I'm 
not going to argue about them, however, they don't look 
to me as if they are an added expense. They look to me 
as if they've taken the expense right from where i tis and 
possibly added some more on because that would be it. I 
don't think it's a true picture, myself. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, first I must 
commend the City of Dawson for their submission. The 
next thing, of course, is that I'm really a bit surprised at 
the results of the White Paper, the information we did 
receive, because we did call for a feasibility study, if 
that's what you want to phrase it as and we've only got 
one side of the coin. We've got a figure here showing, or 
a piece of paper here showing us some costs, but what ) 
about the benefits? And how, really, how does it affect ( 
the program? I'd like to see something in writing to-
the delivery of services. There are many other ques-
tions that need to be answered before I could accept this 
as being conclusive, Mr. Chairman, that's for sure. 

I have to agree with the Member from Klondike when 
he was mentioning the Clinton Creek situation. I was a 
little bit surprised that the Minister of Health and Wel
fare, when she talked of Clinton Creek and she was 
questioning the Member from Ogilvie. Certainly it's the 
responsibility of the government of Yukon to be looking 
at the Clinton Creek situation as well and I would, you 
know, I would have hoped that we'd already have our 
economic team of people doing some work on that one 
and coming up with some answers and alternates as 
well. Possibly they've been doing it, I don't know, but 
certainly that's a responsibility of the government of 
Yukon and we shouldn't be waiting for a number of 
pressure groups and interest groups to also be doing 
theirs. We certainly need their support. 

But I'm not happy with the results that we have here 
before us today, Mr. Speaker, I couldn't really- or Mr. 
Chairman, I couldn't really give you an opinion or not on 
this one, because there just isn't enough information. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, looking at the advan
tages and the disadvantages and there probably is a 
balance either way too, that it would be a disadvantage 
to move the central tourism office, territorial tourism 
office to Dawson City, that it should remain in ( ) 
Whitehorse. But, Mr. Chairman, we always come up \... ( 



with this answer and we are always saying that we 
should be decentralizing and taking everything so that 
everything isn't just centralized in Whitehorse and we 
should be making a positive step in that manner. 
I think, Mr. Chairman, even though it may not be the 
most sensible thing to do when you look at travel and 
cost of travel, but why don't we try some suggestion 
such as this. Nothing would be, you haven'tgot a better 
test case to work with than Tourism and move it to 
Dawson. 

I don't think that the Honourable Member from Klon
dike meant that if the central tourism office goes to 
Dawson that they're just going to be worried about 
Dawson's tourism , because then I couldn't agree with 
him, but I think that they can handle the Tourism at 
Haines Junction and at Watson Lake as well from Daw
son as they can from Whitehorse. 

Mr. Chairman, the paper, I don't think it was a very 
in-depth study, does suggest that it would take an initial 
capital expenditure of $360,000.00. Yesterday we sat 
here and passed a piece of legislation without batting an 
eye, gu&ranteeing a loan of $400,000.00 for the Credit 
Union. We never batted an eye. The benefits that are 
going to accrue from that aren't really-we're not really 
going to see those benefits that much. If a $360,000.00 
investment was made in the City of Dawson, let's look at 
the spin-off that the witnesses the other day, this after
noon, were talking about, seven to one - $360,000.00 
alone, there would be a spin-off in Dawson, plus your 
extra employees. 

Mr. Chairman, when we were doing the teacher train
ing program and I don' t recall whether I stood up and 
said it or not but from the time that I've heard that there 
was going to be a teacher training program, or they 
were considering having a teacher training program in 
the Yukon, I had thought that it should be in one of the 
smaller communi ties where will be training most of the 
teachers to go. I had thought that Mayo should have the 
teacher training program, and I still think so. Everyone 
says I'm crazy. But unless we start doing things like 
that, we're not ever going to split up and move the 
government services out of one central area. 

Mr. Chairman, I have a great deal of sympathy with 
the Dawson presentation, and it's not only sympathy, 
I'm prepared to put my money where my words are. l'm 
prepared to take the risk on it. Again, we will tell sooner 
or la.ter whether it was a wise decision or not. After all, 
don't forget I don't know how many years ago, when 
they moved every office from Dawson to Whitehorse 
and we're only thinking of moving one back to Daws~n. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: I'm very sorry the Minister. of Health 
and Welfare isn't here at the moment, as I have some 
questions to ask her. There she is. I was really glad to 
hear her mention that other departments of the Ter
ritorial government should consider the possibility of 
moving away from Whitehorse. It's an excellent propos
ition, and it's something that has been brought up in an 
inter-agency workshop, "There Must Be a Better Way" , 
held in November. There were two resolutions there, 
dealing with the very fact of decentralization, and I 
would like to mention them. One is in Education: 'there 
be a decentralization-this is a recommendation from 
one of the units-that there be a decentralization carried 
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out of educational and residential facilities for children 
operated by governmental departments." That's pretty 
straightforward. 

The other one I would certainly like to hear the com
ments of the Minister on: "That there is a tendency ~o 
send children to Whitehorse from rural areas because of 
poor home life, Jack of facilities, etcetera. A solution to 
this problem is to provide more group homes in local 
areas for older students . There should be a greater de
centralization of facilities. " I would certainly like to 
hear the Minister's comments on those. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I caught the last half of that, I 
think, Mr. Chairman. As the Honourable Member full 
well knows, we have group homes in each community 
where such children require special accommodation, 
and one of the criticisms we've had of our group home in 
Dawson has been that there are very few children using 
it. However, we have kept it open and we have no inten
tion of closing it. If more children in the area require 
such care, I know it would be provided there. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard: Mr.Chairman, I certainly don't want to 
get into a Social Welfare argument, but there certainly 
are a number of children being sent from Mayo and 
Dawson to Whitehorse to Wolf Creek and other 
facilities, and that the recommendation does read, 
" provide more group homes in local areas for older 
students." 

There are many students that are coming to 
Whitehorse that need not to come, and children sent for 
other problems as well. At least, that's one considera
tion of decentralization, and there were two motions. I 
was going to ask that in Question Period just to see how 
much action had been taken on that; however, the idea 
has come up here. I think there are two general ques
tions on the decentralization consideration. One is a 
general question on the philosophy of decentralization 
and I don't think that's been solved, as far as Tourism is 
concerned, and we're only just now throwing around 
ideas of other particular decentralization policies. 

At the bottom of the White Paper on Decentralization, 
Mr. Gillespie has said; "We will continue to examine 
the feasibility of decentralizing units of government to 
areas outside of Whitehorse." 

Since we've had this paper for quite some time, since 
November last, how much continuation of examining 
the feasibility of decentralizing other units of govern
ment has been done to this time, and how much is going 
to be done in the future? 

Mr. Gillespie: At this point in time, Mr. Chairman , or 
during this period of time, not much has been done. 
We've been in the middle of a Budget Session an'd subse
quently, we've been dealing with legislation here in the 
House, and there has been little time to do work on 
decentralization. So, for the moment, the answer is, 
very little. As we say, we will continue to examine this 
issue, but it is not a simple issue. If you examine what 
other governments do when they examine the feasibil
ity of decentralization and establish policies in that re
gard, there are genP.rally man years spent on that topic . 



alone. It's not nearly as simple as it might appear. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman , one comment. 
The Federal GQvernment appears to implement its de
centralization just before a by-election somewhere. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre. 

Mr. Mcintyre: Having been through some decentrali
zation that the Federal GQvernment initiated in the 
Yukon a few years ago, I can see that what really hap
pens with decentralization, you get twice as many peo
ple doing the same amount of work that ~as do.ne be
fore. I think that to take one isolated case hke this, and 
make a decision on it would be just absolutely foolish. 
We should have an in-depth study to find out what par
ticular department or what particular phase of gov
ernment would best be suited to be decentralized, and 
not out of a clear blue sky, pick Tourism , and say, this is 
the one we should make the decision on. 

I think the whole matter requires a great deal more 
study than has been given to the whole sub~ect, and in 
this subject in particular, we've got a very fnvolous cost 
statement of this move , and we haven' t got any cost 
benefits. I think before we could do anything, we have to 
have a cost benefit analysis of any more that might be 
suggested. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . McCall. 

Mr. McCall: Are you closing off debate, Mr. Chair
man ? 

Mr. Chairman: I would hope you were, Mr. McCall. 

Mr. McCall: Okay. Mr. Chairman, I would move that 
Mr. Speaker do now resume the Chair. 

Mr. Fleming: I second that. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. McCall, 
seconded by Mr. Fleming, that Mr. Speaker do now 
resume the Chair. Are you ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: The motion is carried. 

(Motion carried) 

Mr. Chairman: The witness is excused. 

(MR. SPEAKER RESUMES CHAIR) 

Mr. Speaker: I now call the House to order. May we 
have a report from the Chairman of Committees? 

Mr. Hibberd: Yes, Mr. Speaker. The Committee of 
the Whole considered Resolution number 25 respecting 
environmental impact studies on the Dempster High
way, and directed me to report thatthey do not concur in 
same. 
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The Committee have also considered the green paper (\ 
on Bid Differentials for Northern Enterprise, and di- " J 
rected me to report they have adopted a certain resolu-
tion in respect thereto. 

The Committee have also considered the White Paper 
on Decentralization, and directel.! me to report progress 
on same. 

The Committee also directed me to ask leave to sit 
again. 

Mr. Speaker: You have heard the report of the 
Chairman of Committees . Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: Leave is so granted. May I have your 
further pleasure? The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale. 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker, I move that we do now 
call if five o'clock. 

Mr. Speaker: I believe a motion for adjournment 
would be in order as it is now past five o'clock. 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker, I move that we adjourn. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there a seconder? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: I'll second that, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, 
that we do now adjourn. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed ? 
I shall declare the motion has carried. 

(Motion carried) 

Mr. Speaker: This House now stands adjourned until 
10:00 a.m. tomorrow. 

(ADJOURNED) 



\ 

· . 1· ' . ,. 
····' 

I ! ~. l .' : · · 
i • I :r -, 

;', 
(:· 
I. 

•_.,. 1! .. 11 ,,! ' • ·I' !J·I ,u.t~t••l lll l ,•l'th ... ""~ ho ,t ... uf ll"· fact th•t 
:l.t ' /11" I <; \1•• , , 1,iql h th• ft•nlto rl,d \\;•o~ t'1 ·t.t Of IIC11lth Cl)ll• 

' 1:-•t l ttl.l._ ~ f t" ' , t•: +.•t \hJH lu-- ifj.l ( hiiJ thl.' I," • th.ll - I t'~' olfh•Clcd?, tlnd 

(,m tlw• 1'-r.Jr! r,·ut 1 t ,~.d l' o ,.,,._,1111' t ht' I'C'!I.tll..•o,('. tt f loarl) lh-lt tht' lns.eclt · 
c hit• u"·d h11 h~t·H' o' II•, ,., ""t luu:.ful ' 

\h1• ·"''•""'" ' " t h,lt 'l'~··-..: "''' '" ,,, _fn)l('\<1.-. : 

h•· : .. .. ,,. ' ,, ,,. , · ·r, .. "' '· •· · ' ... '· L• ' I ull'• c ~'r .11 
,, ' ~ ••• ,. I ... • ' • '' • ''· .I 'I '' ' 1.·- 'I:" • . '·'· I .~ • I •• "' I .. I" 
nu i\Jt u• ,.,,,, ·""'~lhlly. 

l ho• jtrt1!t\M 1\ r11tl' olJ•.u· t ~t C'ttl h lnca. .tutl lhl" !'C' h <lifllcu l ty ~o ilh aCCt'\\ tO 
011•' Jloll' l kulol r o\Jitl t'fto•nt, 

Our l• l hut•r .. r'll IL••II h (\f f l.t r Ioiii I I·· h• f.lro 1":10 ,_ ... •l rot V1y 't, 191/ 
fm h-1 \I I , • , ' ., , 1- ''·.t ilt 1, ,., t• : , I • If\~ 'lo•.•\1 '1, 
1.anJo..,l l•'l 1 ollt: ,•·•·•to t , 

l v tro t hcu t ht rr i \ rw• !lt•.lr,llll!•t• t h~l t h(' I•UIJ\ wl I I not l'l.'- OCCUI', 

AJtri I 'll , 1?11 

/ '' .. /• 

I'• 

, ?, , \'·I . 
,1\ ol ) lt.t···· 

-· ··' i·:· : ·· ' '" 1.1+ . \ , .. , : 

\ .... _ 
', 

:-. \INI (· ! " "' r .. . : •C tr·· I .• r,l 1 .••• J •• '· ~~·- I • ,, -I. · •• •:• ·.lit I 

0•1 tl .. · JIIUjlll)"' .... :•·· :,, •; t•' tilt l ,u,, l .. n ·" : '. • o: • · '1 •·· '''' I li'· 

pru;'V'"'' Ill tl • I'· I, • 1 i' ll·,·,lo•o I f f, l•t! 1•·o!t! 1:11 ' '. I ' " •• ,•1" I'll' 
\o liO ot!d )' I lh' ~ t•o'o' I {,o • 1 1\ I o 1 I : h I 1 I' II I • II: h,t • I • o •' I '' ' " 1 "• , It ' llo ' 
111' 1'1'''"' ' · c,,,. ' ''" "l"l<;h• o ,.lVI ' r • toll l h·· ! .. lh•.ol • •, ·.!1!•' 

I . llw,:n will ll·•· .: ., t• ' on ' "' 1 •• ~ •• 1.1 1 h ., ·.,,. I : • Ito , •I'·''' "''' o•f 
tlw r,., ,,,,,,, .,irh; f.,I IIIIC'!o' 

;\ , ~ "'' ' t•. " • , .,. , , ... ..... (Of • • ...... "I • I •• , • • , '• ' ·I I ·' 

t·····; , .. 

!~11\~<"t.'! 1«1_ li';l l •t··~ thut I'• ''"' fttl l t~oo 

I . In II\ fhto;.ro•,ol , tl • ( -' !'~ I:C•utl , , II( 1 :•· 'u~\ .. •.u •,J, •' 1' .. •' lh·• f . , 1 I 
ity !If' r • p •t.-1,•1 frt ··· f. 111 111 I•·•'·· lt•.tl' '· 1 : ·I • ' ' ( t1 •• I '• • , ', ' 
t lt! o.lt ' " ) -,),I I ; ••' ' ' • ' ' I I 

1 
' ' 

,~,., I,., ,, . I ~-, , I I · .: ' ,., I . I I • I' :.1 . • ' •'· : . . "· ' I t 

f ie~· (I'II'JMtll'l tt~ (If f .. t \ t::nol l l' o·o~ ll 1t I. ' I :.•t,-} I ,, , I t to t· : 1• , 1 •' 

liu lt,·IJ l'""')r<"\~ "'' tltt'.. ll,~ llf'•1 .-w-1 _ • .,, 11 :,· it " 'II t •. ••· • t•• ~ • 
t o tOf"Ph:t l·. 

Thot l.lc cl~tou Is nvt '-O •.o~t(h v•w or t ''-IMII\11'" lui • ·•I Ii ,. lh·•. •uttl ,,,. 
for~~~ of c •t'-'" "lon o.hirl• l!o ••••:td • o' d . 11 ·· ,•,., i\it•11 t • ' '''' I•, '11' •· \ol!l i l 
tht Rtror t t•y tit~· r.•cp rnt1 Olt li t h ~. ,J,: :. 

,I, 
l . At thi s pcilnt f l'l tiN', lhl' f!t•I'IH•tul O'fH<" '' n11t 1''"1'·' " '' " t C' r •It· olh)' 

COtf'llllt ...,.nl'\ nt• tit~• st., r t o f <.~·11~ \ ru\ tl"'" 

3 . 11'1 t ho• 11'111-7tl I )l h •h '' • f \lotl•l l ,t.T.nt 1' .. 11, Y.l . r h•• 1'11'1' 1• ' ' 

SlO , O'lO f ('lr d••\1')11 .lthl I'II'Jir.o -·1 itl•l ..,,., 'I~··. It i'. •'"' ic 1, ,:. • 11• .t • • 
wt ll bt Co'l l lc·d 1.11"'" fnr .-, f ut tl·••r $1CI'I,r- I 111 \ fl/, .. J I '"'I th ! I• • I •: .; 
C:O!o L will be> In liM• f'C'C)i~111 tJ ( ~ 11\l,rA~. 

Apdl 27 , 1971 
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